
Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Regular Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, September 3, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Pledge of Allegiance 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters 
within its jurisdiction.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete a speaker’s request 
form and provide the completed form to the Board Secretary prior to the board meeting. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these items unless board members, administrative staff, or members of the 
public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed prior to the vote for approval.   

A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting - August 20, 2019 

2. Board Workshop - August 27, 2019 

V. STAFF REPORT 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Purchase of Additional Software Components for the Caselle Financial Package [Director 
Memorandum No. 19-089 - Page 31 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board ratify the purchase of the purchase 
order application for a sum not to exceed $3,075. 

B. Request for Proposal for Public Relations Support Services for the Recycled Water Program 
[Director Memorandum No. 19-090 - Page 35 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the release of the Request 
for Proposals for public relations support services for the recycled water program. 

C. Request for Proposal for Public Relations Support Services for the San Timoteo Creek 
Habitat Monitoring Program and the San Timoteo GSA [Director Memorandum No. 19-091 
- Page 53 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the release of the Request 
for Proposals for public relations support services for the San Timoteo creek habitat 
monitoring program and the San Timoteo GSA. 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 1 of 181

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


 
Page 2 

D. Re-Approval of the Brineline Easement - Canal Parcel License Agreement with the City of 
Riverside [Director Memorandum No. 19-092 - Page 71 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute the Canal Parcel License Agreement with the City of Riverside. 

E. Consideration of Purchasing 1,000 Acre Feet of Imported Water from the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District for Groundwater Recharge of the Bunker Hill Groundwater 
Basin for Calendar Year 2020 [Director Memorandum No. 19-093 - Page 89 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the purchase of 1,000 acre-
feet from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for a sum not to exceed 
$118,400. 

F. Consideration of Resolution No. 2019-17 Updating the Calculation for Facility Capacity 
Charges Necessary to Secure Supplemental Water Resources for New Development within 
the Boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and the City of Calimesa [Director 
Memorandum No. 19-094 - Page 92 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board approve Resolution No. 2019-17. 

G. Consideration of Purchasing 250 Acre Feet of Imported Water from the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency for Direct Delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility for 
Calendar Year 2020 [Director Memorandum No. 19-095 - Page 102 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the purchase of 250 acre-
feet of imported water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  for a sum not to 
exceed $99,750. 

H. Purchase of Replacement Lamps for the Ultraviolet Disinfection Process at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility [Director Memorandum No. 19-096 - Page 107 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the purchase of 336 
ultraviolet lamps for a sum not to exceed $133,954.80 from Trojan Technologies. 

I. Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to Recharge Testing to Evaluate the Long-Term 
Infiltration Rates in the Western Portion of the Beaumont Basin - Calimesa Lake and 
Spreading Basin [Director Memorandum No. 19-097 - Page 109 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract for Amendment No. 2 with Geoscience for a sum not to exceed 
$456,064. 

J. Consideration of Replacing the Influent Basket Strainers at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility [Director Memorandum No. 19-098 - Page 132 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
purchase three Forsta Filters and contract with Pascal & Ludwig for the installation 
for a sum not to exceed $338,100. 

K. Participation in an Energy Demand Response Program with Enersponse [Director 
Memorandum No. 19-099 - Page 142 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board Authorizes the General Manager to 
Execute Participation Agreement in an Energy Demand Response Program with 
Enersponse. 

L. Acceptance of Overlying Water Rights in the Beaumont Basin for Tract No. 32702-4 (145 
lots) Pursuant to Beaumont Basin Watermaster Resolution No. 2017-02 [Director 
Memorandum No. 19-100 - Page 146 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the purchase of 1,000 acre-
feet from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for a sum not to exceed 
$118,400. 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 2 of 181



 
Page 3 

M. Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement No. 2019-12 with Richmond American 
Homes for Tract No. 32702-4 within the Summerwind Trails Development - Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 19-101 - Page 148 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board Authorizes the President to execute 
Agreement No. 2019-12. 

N. Approval of Amendments to Development Agreements for Lennar Homes (Agreement No. 
18-10), DR Horton (Agreement No. 18-11), and Meritage Homes (Agreement No. 18-17) in 
the Summerwind Trails Development [Director Memorandum No. 19-102 - Page 165 of 181] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board approve Amendment No. 1 to 
Development Agreement Nos. 18-10, 18-11, and 18-17. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. September 4, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Site Tour of the Webster Ranch Property 

B. September 10, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

C. September 17, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

D. September 24, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

E. September 25, 2019 at 1:30pm.  Collaborative Workshop between the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and Yucaipa Valley 
Water District.  To be held at 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, California. 

F. October 1, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

G. October 8, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

H. October 15, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

I. October 29, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

J. November 5, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

K. November 12, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

L. November 19, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

M. November 26, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

N. December 3, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

O. December 10, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

P. December 17, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

Q. December 31, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop - Cancelled 

R. January 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Cancelled 

S. January 14, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

T. January 21, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

U. January 28, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 3 of 181



 
Page 4 

IX. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number: 473-070-019 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Vinh Nguyen 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number: 473-070-020 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Hector Erami and Alexandra Rodriguez 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (Government Code 54956.9) - One 
Case 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 4 of 181



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 5 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

August 20, 2019 at 6:00 P.M. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by Chris Mann at 6:00 
p.m. at the Administrative Office Building, 12770 Second Street, 
Yucaipa, California. 
 

FLAG SALUTE Director Chris Mann led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL The roll was called with Director Jay Bogh, Director Bruce 
Granlund, Director Chris Mann, and Director Joyce McIntire 
present.   
 
Director Lonni Granlund was absent. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS Leonard Stephenson commented on the data and information 
included in the “Facts about the Yucaipa Valley Water District” 
attached to back of the board meeting packet. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR Director Jay Bogh moved to approve the consent calendar and 
Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting - August 6, 2019 
2. Board Workshop - August 13, 2019 

B. Payment of Bills 
1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded 

Contracts 

Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Bruce Granlund, Vice President 
Jay Bogh, Director 
Joyce McIntire, Director 

Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Madeline Blua, Water Resource Specialist 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 Lonni Granlund, Director David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Leonard Stephenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 6 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 7 

2. Ratify General Expenses for July 2019 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the following items: 

• The Green Valley Foundation discussed a possible pilot 
project for vineyards at the Webster Ranch.  A site tour 
has been scheduled for September 4, 2019 at 4:00 pm 
to review the proposed pilot project. 

• The California Energy Commission will be requiring the 
use of new sprinkler spray bodies for water and energy 
conservation. 

• The City of Yucaipa will be discussing the use of SCIP 
financing for the payment of development related fees at 
the city council meeting on Monday, August 26, 2019. 

• The Yucaipa Valley Water District will be participating in 
a joint board workshop with the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District and the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency on Wednesday, September 25, 2019 at 
1:30 pm. 

• Information was distributed from the American Medical 
Association about a recent article about fluoride 
exposure during pregnancy. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

 

DM 19-075 
 
RECEIPT AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
OF THE AUDITOR’S 
COMMUNICATION 
WITH THOSE 
CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten presented the Auditor’s 
Communication with Those Charged with Governance. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board receive the annual 
planning letter from Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP.  Director 
Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 7 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 7 

DM 19-076 
 
DISCUSSION 
REGARDING A 
PROPOSAL TO 
INSTALL 
GROUNDWATER 
MONITORING WELLS 
IN THE SAN TIMOTEO 
MANAGEMENT ZONE 

Water Resource Manager Jennifer Ares presented information 
about the design of groundwater wells in the San Timoteo 
Management Zone. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to execute a contract with Geoscience for a sum not to 
exceed $24,556.  Director Bruce Granlund seconded the 
motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-077 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
PROPOSED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO 
THE LABORATORY AT 
THE WOCHHOLZ 
REGIONAL WATER 
RECYCLING FACILITY 

Regulatory Compliance Manager Ashely Gibson presented 
information about the proposed improvements to the laboratory 
at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility. 
 
Director Bruce Granlund moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to execute the proposal with LCS for a sum 
not to exceed $89,793.  Director Joyce McIntire seconded the 
motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-078 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-
16 DECLARING A 
STAGE 1 WATER 
SUPPLY CONDITION 
FOR YUCAIPA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT’S 
SERVICE AREA 

Water Resource Manager Jennifer Ares presented Resolution 
No. 2019-16 setting a Stage 1 water conservation declaration 
for the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 
2019-16.  Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 8 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 7 

DM 19-079 
 
REVIEW OF PUBLIC 
DISCLOSURE REPORT 
PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 53065.5 FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten presented the public 
disclosure report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board receive and file the 
Public Disclosure Report for Fiscal Year 2018-19.  Director 
Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-080 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
PURCHASING 
REPLACEMENT 
MICROFILTRATION 
MEMBRANE MODULES 
FOR THE YUCAIPA 
VALLEY REGIONAL 
WATER FILTRATION 
FACILITY AND THE 
WOCHHOLZ REGIONAL 
WATER RECYCLING 
FACILITY 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented a revised proposal 
from Pall Corporation for the purchase of microfiltration 
membranes at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility and the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility.  
The revised proposal reduced the membrane module cost from 
$1,300 per module to $1,250 per module, reducing the overall 
cost by approximately $52,000. 
 
Director Bruce Granlund moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to purchase 1,056 Pall microfiltration 
membrane modules for a sum not to exceed $1,470,950.  
Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-081 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
REHABILITATING THE 
PRIMARY CLARIFIER 
EQUIPMENT AND 
BASINS AT THE 
WOCHHOLZ REGIONAL 
WATER RECYCLING 
FACILITY 

Operations Manager Charles Thomas presented information 
about the rehabilitation of the primary clarifiers. 
 
Director Bruce Granlund moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to award a contract to Track Tech for a sum 
not to exceed $327,800.  Director Jay Bogh seconded the 
motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 9 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5 of 7 

DM 19-082 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
USING AERIAL 
IMAGERY TO 
EVALUATE WATER 
GOALS WITHIN THE 
YUCAIPA VALLEY 
WATER DISTRICT 

Water Resource Specialist Madeline Blua presented information 
about the use of aerial imagery to evaluate water demands.  
This program is part of the collaboration between the 
Department of Water Resources and Eagle Aerial. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to enter into a contract for the use of WaterView from 
Eagle Aerial.  Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-083 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A 
PROPOSED 
CONTRACT WITH THE 
INLAND EMPIRE 
RESOURCE 
CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT FOR 
EDUCATIONAL 
SERVICES 

Water Resource Specialist Madeline Blua presented information 
about the service contract with the Inland Empire Resource 
Conservation District for assistance with educational programs. 
 
Director Bruce Granlund moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to allocate $5,540 to the Inland Empire 
Resource Conservation District for water conservation 
classroom programs.  Director Joyce McIntire seconded the 
motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-084 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 2019-
08 TO PROVIDE 
DRINKING WATER AND 
SEWER SERVICE TO 
TRACT NO. 20234 
LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER 
OF BRYANT STREET 
AND FIR AVENUE IN 
THE CITY OF YUCAIPA 

Implementation Manager Kathryn Hallberg presented 
Development Agreement No. 2019-08. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board authorize the 
President to execute Development Agreement No 2019-08.  
Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 10 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 6 of 7 

DM 19-085 
 
OVERVIEW OF 
DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 2019-
09 TO PROVIDE 
DRINKING WATER AND 
SEWER SERVICE TO 
APN 0318-031-50 
LOCATED ON THE 
EAST SIDE OF 10TH 
STREET, SOUTH OF 
YUCAIPA BOULEVARD 
IN THE CITY OF 
YUCAIPA 

Implementation Manager Kathryn Hallberg presented 
Development Agreement No. 2019-09. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board authorize the 
President to execute Development Agreement No 2019-09.  
Director Jay Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-086 
 
OVERVIEW OF 
DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 2019-
10 TO PROVIDE 
DRINKING WATER AND 
SEWER SERVICE TO 
TRACT MAP NO. 19901 
LOCATED NORTH OF 
AVENUE E BETWEEN 
DOUGLAS STREET 
AND FREMONT 
STREET IN THE CITY 
OF YUCAIPA 

Implementation Manager Kathryn Hallberg presented 
Development Agreement No. 2019-10. 
 
Director Bruce Granlund moved that the Board authorize the 
President to execute Development Agreement No 2019-10.  
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

DM 19-087 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
PURCHASING 6,000 
ACRE FEET OF 
IMPORTED WATER 
FROM THE SAN 
BERNARDINO VALLEY 
MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT FOR DIRECT 
DELIVERY TO THE 
YUCAIPA VALLEY 
REGIONAL WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY 
FOR CALENDAR YEAR 
2020 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented the request to 
purchase 6,000 acre feet of imported water from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for Calendar Year 
2020. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board authorize the purchase 
of 6,000 acre-feet from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District for a sum not to exceed $754,800.  Director Bruce 
Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 11 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 7 of 7 

DM 19-088 
 
ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-
18 PLEDGING 
REVENUES AND 
FUNDS FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF LOAN 
FINANCINGS WITH THE 
STATE WATER 
RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD 

General Manager Joseph Zoba Resolution No. 2019-18. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 
2019-18.  Director Bruce Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Absent 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

Director Joyce McIntire reported on the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency Engineering Workshop held on August 12, 2019. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire and Director Bruce Granlund reported 
on the Association of San Bernardino County Special District 
meeting. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Chris Mann called attention to the announcements 
listed on the agenda.   
 

CLOSED SESSION The closed session was not conducted at this meeting.   
 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m.   
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 12 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES OF A BOARD WORKSHOP 
 

August 27, 2019 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Bruce Granlund, Vice President 
Lonni Granlund, Director  
Joyce McIntire, Director  
 

Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Madeline Blua, Water Resource Specialist 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician I 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
Dustin Hochreiter, Senior Engineering Technician 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Tim Mackamul, Operations Manager 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Supervisor 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, Director  David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Guests and Others Present: 
 Linda Shelton 

Claire Teeters 
Bonnie Johnson, City of Calimesa 
Paul Kielhold, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Leonard Stephenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
Mike Turner, Argent Management 
 

 
I. Call to Order - 4:00 p.m. - The workshop of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley 

Water District was called to order by Chris Mann at 4:00 p.m. at the Administrative Office 
Building, 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California. 

II. Public Comments - Leonard Stephenson commented on the units used for the data 
associated with the “Facts about the Yucaipa Valley Water District” attached to back of 
the workshop packet. 

III. Staff Report - A staff report was not provided at this workshop. 

IV. Presentation 

A. Discussion regarding Implementation of Caselle, Elements, XPress Bill Pay and 
Nat Pay [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-171] - Allison Edmisten provided an 
overview of the new computer software programs used by the District staff to 
improve efficiency and access to integrated information. 

B. Overview of the Water Recharge Activities at Wilson Creek Spreading Basin and 
the Oak Glen Creek Spreading Basin [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-172] - 
Operation Manager Mike Kostelecky reported on the artificial recharge at the 
Wilson Creek Spreading Basins and the Oak Glen Creek Spreading Basins.   

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 13 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 2 of 4 

V. Operational Updates 

A. Status Report of the Tracer Testing at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins in 
Preparation of Recycled Water Recharge [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-173] - 
Water Resource Manager Jennifer Ares provided information about the proposed 
tracer study to the conducted at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins. 

VI. Capital Improvement Projects 

A. Status Report on the Water Mainline Replacement on Oak View Road, Yucaipa 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-174] - Public Works Manager John Wrobel 
reported on the mainline replacement project on Oak View Road. 

B. Consideration of Purchasing and Installing Replacement Influent Basket Strainers 
at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 19-175] - Operations Manager Mike Kostelecky reported on the need for 
replacing the basket strainers at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility. 

C. Purchase of Replacement Lamps for the Ultraviolet Disinfection Process at the 
Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-
176] - Operations Manager Charles Thomas reported on the need for purchasing 
additional ultraviolet bulbs for the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility. 

VII. Public Policy 

A. Overview of the Proposed Septic Tank Elimination Program to Facilitate the 
Connection of Existing Homes and Businesses to the Sewer Collection and Sewer 
Treatment Infrastructure [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-177 - Page 29 of 249] - 
This item was continued to a future board workshop. 

B. Consideration of Using the Statewide Community Infrastructure Program for the 
Payment of Drinking Water, Recycled Water and Sewer Facility Capacity Charges 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-178] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided 
information about this workshop item.  Director Bruce Granlund reported on the 
council meeting at the City of Yucaipa on August 26, 2019.  There was a general 
consensus to wait until more information is available about a specific development 
project where SCIP financing would be considered. 

VIII. Development Related 

A. Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Richmond American 
Homes for Tract No. 32702-4 within the Summerwind Development - Calimesa 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-179] - Senior Engineering Technician Dustin 
Hochreiter provided an overview of the development agreement for Tract No. 
32702-4. 

IX. Administrative Issues 

A. Review of Resolution No. 2019-xx Updating the Calculation for Facility Capacity 
Charges Necessary to Secure Supplemental Water Resources for New 
Development within the Boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and 
the City of Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-180] - General Manager 
Joseph Zoba reported on the proposed resolution adjusting the fees to secure 
supplemental water supplies in Calimesa. 

B. Overview of a Groundwater Recharge Facilities Agreement with the San 
Bernardino County Flood Control District for the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-181] -  - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 14 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 3 of 4 

a sample agreement for the recharge of recycled water at the Wilson Creek 
Spreading Basins. 

C. Review of Additional Scientific Studies Related to the Geotechnical Investigation 
of the Calimesa Lake and Recharge Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-182] 
-  - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information about the next phases of 
investigation at the Calimesa Spreading Basins. 

D. Request for Proposal for Public Relations Support Services for the Recycled Water 
Program [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-183] - Implementation Manager Kathryn 
Hallberg presented the proposal for public relations support for the recycled water 
program.  

E. Overview of the Draft Memorandum of Agreement for the San Timoteo 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-184] - 
General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the proposed 
Memorandum of Agreement. 

F. Request for Proposal for Public Relations Support Services for the San Timoteo 
Creek Habitat Monitoring Program and the San Timoteo GSA [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 19-185] - Implementation Manager Kathryn Hallberg presented 
the proposal for public relations support for the San Timoteo Creek Habitat 
Monitoring Program and the San Timoteo GSA. 

G. Acceptance of Overlying Water Rights in the Beaumont Basin for Tract No. 32702-
4 (145 lots) Pursuant to Beaumont Basin Watermaster Resolution No. 2017-02 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-186] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided 
information about the transfer of overlying water rights from Oak Valley Partners. 

H. Overview of the Draft Financial Rate Model for the Drinking Water, Sewer, and 
Recycled Water Enterprises [Workshop Memorandum No. 19-187] - General 
Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the Comprehensive Rate Study. 

I. Proposed Participation in an Energy Demand Response Program with Enersponse 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-188] - Implementation Manager Kathryn Hallberg 
presented information about the energy demand response program. 

J. Discussion Regarding the Recharge of Imported Water in the Bunker Hill 
Groundwater Basin by the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for 
Future Delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 19-189] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview 
of the need to recharge water in the Bunker Hill Basin. 

K. Consideration to Participate in the Summerwind 5k on November 9, 2019 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 19-190] - General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed 
the Summerwind 5K.  There was a consensus by the board members that the 
District should participate in the event. 

X. Director Comments 

A. None 

XI. Announcements - The future meetings were referenced on the workshop agenda. 

XII. Closed Session 

Director Bruce Granlund, Director Lonni Granlund, Director Chris Mann, and 
Director Joyce McIntire were present in closed session with Legal Counsel David 
Wysocki, General Manager Joseph Zoba, and Chief Financial Officer Allison 
Edmisten to discuss the following items. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 15 of 181



Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 4 of 4 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (Government 
Code 54956.9) - Two Cases 

After reconvening out of closed session, Legal Counsel David Wysocki reported 
that direction was provided to the General Manager and that there were no other 
reportable actions taken. 

XIII. Adjournment - The meeting was adjourned at 6:05 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 16 of 181



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 17 of 181



State Water Board Updates Guidelines for Testing and Reporting 
PFOA and PFOS As It Assesses Scope of Problem 

Process Begun for Establishing Regulatory Standards 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE                                                Contact: Blair Robertson 
August 23, 2019                                                        blair.robertson@waterboards.ca.gov 

SACRAMENTO – The State Water Resources Control Board today announced updated 
guidelines for local water agencies to follow in detecting and reporting the presence of 
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) in drinking water.  
The Board also announced it has begun the process of establishing regulatory standards for 
these chemicals. 

The updated guidelines are part of the Board’s comprehensive effort to assess the scope of 
contamination of drinking water supplies by PFOA and PFOS, chemicals that have been 
widely used in grease and stain-resistant coatings for consumer products and in firefighting 
foams. Because of their potential adverse health effects, these chemicals pose an emerging 
risk to drinking water sources nationwide. 

The updated state guidelines lower the current notification levels from 14 parts per trillion (ppt) 
to 5.1 ppt for PFOA and from 13 ppt to 6.5 ppt for PFOS. The guidelines are based on updated 
health recommendations by the California Environmental Protection Agency’s Office of 
Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA). 

Notification levels are a nonregulatory, precautionary health-based measure for concentrations 
in drinking water that warrant notification and further monitoring and assessment. Public water 
systems are encouraged to test their water for contaminants with notification levels, and in 
some circumstance may be ordered to test. If the systems do test, they are required to report 
exceedances to their governing boards and the State Water Board and are urged to report this 
information to customers. 

In addition to the updated notification levels, the State Water Board announced today it has 
requested that OEHHA develop public health goals (PHGs) for both PFOA and PFOS, the next 
step in the process of establishing regulatory standards, known as maximum contaminant 
levels (MCLs), in drinking water. Other chemicals in the broader group of per- and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) may be considered later, either individually or grouped, as 
data permits. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 18 of 181

mailto:blair.robertson@waterboards.ca.gov


The State Water Board is currently conducting a statewide assessment to determine the scope 
of contamination by PFAS, including PFOA and PFOS, in water systems and groundwater. In 
the first phase, public water systems were ordered earlier this year to sample about 600 
drinking water supply wells located near airports and landfills, where contamination is more 
likely, and near locations where PFAS was previously found. These chemicals have been used 
in fire-fighting foams at airports for fire training and response and have also been used in many 
consumer products that end up in landfills. 

Following this initial phase, the assessment will likely focus on sampling water sources near 
industrial sites and at wastewater treatment facilities. Data collected from the assessment will 
be made publicly available on the State Water Board’s website and used to inform future 
actions. 

While the State Water Board continues to assess the scope of contamination based on initial 
data reporting from the statewide assessment, the response levels for PFOA and PFOS 
remain at 70 parts per trillion for the total combined concentration of both contaminants, 
consistent with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s health advisory level. The 
response levels will be updated in the fall. 

Response levels are nonregulatory, precautionary health-based measures that are set higher 
than notification levels and represent a recommended level that water systems consider taking 
a water source out of service or provide treatment if that option is available to them. 

AB 756, signed by Governor Newsom on July 31, authorizes the State Water Board to more 
broadly order water systems to monitor for PFAS and report their detections. Additionally, 
drinking water sources with PFAS levels that exceed the response level are either to be taken 
out of service or the water system must provide public notice of the exceedance level. The law 
takes effect January 1, 2020. 

Exposure to PFOA and PFOS can cause adverse health effects, including harmful effects to a 
developing fetus or infant, immune system and liver effects, and cancer. While consumer 
products are a large source of exposure to these chemicals for most people, drinking water 
has become an increasing concern due to the persistence and tendency of these chemicals to 
accumulate in groundwater. 

For more information about PFOA and PFOS, the updated guidelines, and the work the State 
Water Board’s Division of Drinking Water is doing to assess the presence of these 
contaminants in drinking water, please visit our resources page on these contaminants. 

### 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 19 of 181

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB756
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/PFOA_PFOS.html


 
 

Water costs are rising across the 
U.S. — here's why 
BY  RACHEL  LAYNE  -  AUGUST  27 ,  2019  /  3: 10  PM /  MONEYWATCH 

 

 
 
• Americans this year will pay an average of $104 per month in water and 

wastewater bills, up more than 30% in less than a decade. 

• Water and sewer bills, which are rising faster than inflation, increased for an 
eighth consecutive year in a study of the country's 50 largest metropolitan 

regions. 

• Cities across the country are grappling with aging systems, fewer resources and 

extreme weather. 

 

Each glass of water, shower or flush costs far more than it did just eight years ago 

— and your water is bill is likely to go up again in 2019. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 20 of 181



The average water and sewer bill in 50 cities jumped 3.6% this year, marking the 
eighth consecutive year of increases, according to a recent annual study from 

Bluefield Research.  Since 2012, water bills have surged 31%, outpacing inflation. 

This year, the typical household will pay $104 per month for water and wastewater 

services, the Boston-based company said.  That's a faster pace than increases in 
prices for most groceries or gasoline, based on recent data from the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics. 

So why are Americans drowning in higher water and sewer bills?  

For one, cities across the country are grappling with aging infrastructure that's costly 

to repair. Drinking water is delivered via 1 million miles of pipes across the U.S., 
much of them laid in the early- to mid-20th century with a lifespan of 75 to 100 
years, according to a 2017 report from the American Society of Civil Engineers.  The 

group gave America's drinking water infrastructure a grade of D. Wastewater 
systems didn't fare much better, earning a grade of D+. 

"We've been putting off that investment, we as a country, for decades now," Bluefield 
Research's Erin Bonney Casey told CBS MoneyWatch. "And so there's a backlog of 
projects that we need to do, and there isn't enough money to do all of those projects." 

Failure to adequately manage water systems have led to emergencies in Flint, 
Michigan and now Newark, New Jersey. On Monday, New Jersey's Essex County said 

it will issue a $120 million bond to replace the Newark's lead service pipes, which 
have caused increased lead levels in the city's drinking water. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 21 of 181

https://www.bluefieldresearch.com/ns/us-water-wastewater-bills-climb/
https://www.bls.gov/regions/mid-atlantic/data/averageretailfoodandenergyprices_usandmidwest_table.htm
https://www.infrastructurereportcard.org/glossary/water-infrastructure-finance-innovations-authority-wifia/
https://www.infrastructurereportcard.org/cat-item/drinking_water/
https://www.cbsnews.com/moneywatch/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/lead-in-americas-water-systems-is-a-national-problem/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/lead-in-americas-water-systems-is-a-national-problem/
https://newyork.cbslocal.com/2019/08/26/newark-water-emergency-lead-pipe-replacement/


On top of that, climate change is also playing a role because more frequent and 
stronger storms means higher treatment costs. In some parts of the country, drought 

has strained water sources to critical levels, making it more expensive for cities and 
towns to find other sources of water or spend more on purification, for instance. 

Increasingly unaffordable 

While the increases vary between metro areas, rates on average have increased 
every year since Bluefield began tracking them in 2012. Water is already unaffordable 

for one of 10 U.S. households, a share that's forecast to triple to more than 30 percent 
of within five years, according to a 2017 study from Michigan State University. 

"This is getting more and more expensive, and that always raises the question of 
affordability for low-income households," Casey noted. 

Where rates are surging 

Of the top 50 U.S. metropolitan areas analyzed by Bluefield, 35 raised rates from 
2018 to 2019. The rest lowered or kept their rates unchanged. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 22 of 181

https://www.washingtonpost.com/climate-environment/2019/08/06/mapping-strain-our-water/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/are-you-prepared-for-unaffordable-water-bills/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/are-you-prepared-for-unaffordable-water-bills/


 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 23 of 181



Take El Paso, Texas, where residents saw the highest increase among the 50 metro 
areas. Water rates are up 4% for the 2019-2020 fiscal year, while wastewater rates 

are jumping 8%, according to a report in the El Paso Times. 

El Paso's rates are rising as it pays for years-long repairs to its infrastructure, 

according to Bluefield. The city prefers to increase bills by a smaller percentage each 
year instead of slamming residents with a big one-time jump that they may struggle 
to manage, the El Paso Times reported, citing a city official. 

When customers don't pay 

Water and wastewater utilities must perform a "balancing act" when it comes to 

managing water, often a hidden resource from a consumer perspective until the bill 
shows up, Bluefield's Casey said. 

For instance, when rates go up, sometimes people just don't pay at all. But the utility 

is still managing the same — or more — water volume through its systems and needs 
revenue to pay for the system. Such a scenario can make bills higher for everyone 

else. 

"So by raising the rates, the question becomes are you really just pushing more 
people into defaulting on the bill?" Casey said. 

There isn't a set billing formula or pattern from utility to utility, Bluefield noted. Bills 
— and increases — can depend on each city's system for delivery, treatment, need 

for repair and overhaul of infrastructure, the volume of water used as well as how a 
customer's bill is calculated, according to the Bluefield report. 

"More often than not, public utility rates are mercurial and influenced significantly at 
a political and municipal management level," the report said. 

Utilities still have to pay for the system even when there's inadequate revenue. That 

can drive some municipalities to explore a private takeover of their water systems, 
which can be a controversial move that stirs up fierce local opposition. Others turn 

to conservation programs. Regardless, the bills often just get higher. 

El Paso is far from alone.  In recent months, cities from San 
Diego to Cleveland to Durham, North Carolina and Lowell, Massachusetts each made 

the news because of higher water and sewer rates.  

Income-based water bills 

Many cities have programs for low-income residents that offer payment plans or 
assistance of some kind. But some are searching for "more innovative" methods of 
billing so low-income residents aren't slammed by shutoffs — or decide not to pay 

their bill at all, Casey noted. 

Casey pointed to Philadelphia's program for low-income households as an example. 

Started two years ago, the program bases water bills on income level, not water use. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 24 of 181

https://www.elpasotimes.com/story/news/2019/01/09/el-paso-water-bills-rising-again-2019/2528389002/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/can-the-private-sector-save-americas-aging-water-systems/
https://www.cbs8.com/article/news/officials-give-update-on-high-water-bills-in-san-diego/509-456cc416-3f63-401a-90d6-beb3d14bc28d
https://www.cbs8.com/article/news/officials-give-update-on-high-water-bills-in-san-diego/509-456cc416-3f63-401a-90d6-beb3d14bc28d
https://www.cleveland.com/metro/2019/02/why-have-cleveland-area-water-sewer-bills-doubled-in-a-decade.html
https://www.cbs17.com/news/durham-customers-getting-answers-following-water-bill-spike/
https://boston.cbslocal.com/2019/04/02/lowell-utility-bill-wrong-balances-third-party-website/


The Tiered Assistance Program, or TAP, is available to residents with income of less 
than 150% of the federal poverty level, or about $39,000 for a family of four. 

Payments range from 2% to 4% of household income, according to a report in the 
Philadelphia Inquirer. 

Portland, Oregon is another city that's developed a way to help renters with costs 
tied to rising water and sewer bills. Given the rising cost of water, it's likely these 
types of income-based programs will become more common throughout the U.S., 

Casey said. 

First published on August 27, 2019 / 3:10 PM 

© 2019 CBS Interactive Inc.. All Rights Reserved. 

Source: https://www.cbsnews.com/news/water-bills-rising-cost-of-water-creating-big-

utility-bills-for-americans/ 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 25 of 181

https://www.phila.gov/services/water-gas-utilities/pay-or-dispute-a-water-bill/water-bill-customer-assistance/
https://www.portlandoregon.gov/water/article/672822
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/water-bills-rising-cost-of-water-creating-big-utility-bills-for-americans/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/water-bills-rising-cost-of-water-creating-big-utility-bills-for-americans/


 
 

Opinion | To manage our most precious 

resource, we must reduce, reuse and recycle 
Stuart Khan AUGUST 26 2019 - 6:30PM 

 

 
 

Safe drinking water is our most precious resource.  

But you wouldn't guess that by looking at how most cities manage water. We capture it in dams, 

then use it once before discharging it out to sea.  

If we really valued a resource, especially one prone to shortages, we would hold on to it. We 

would do what we could to reduce, reuse and recycle. 

Reducing water consumption is something we have gotten much better at.  Many homes now 

have dual-flush toilets and low-flow showerheads.  Our clothes washers and dishwashers are 

more water-efficient than they were 20 years ago.  During times of water restrictions, Australians 

have proved themselves to be very effective at cutting back on outdoor water use. 

Reusing water has also come a long way.  Some water from sewage treatment plants is now 

reused to irrigate open space.  There's hardly a town in NSW that isn't reusing some treated 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 26 of 181



sewage effluent to irrigate a golf course.  Many also irrigate playing fields, parks and municipal 

gardens. 

A few cities have small areas where treated sewage is reused on household lawns and gardens, 

as well as for flushing toilets.  To keep this reclaimed water segregated from drinking water, it is 

delivered in a separate pipe network, which is usually painted purple, to indicate that the water is 

not suitable for drinking. 

 

All of these efforts to reuse water are good and they all help.  But these approaches are limited 

in the amounts of water that they can supply and the amounts of fresh water use that they can 

replace. 

Reusing water for irrigation is limited by the weather.  Golf courses, playing fields, parks and 

gardens will use the water when the weather is dry.  But unless very large storage is available, 

which it rarely is, this water will be discharged when its raining and the ground is wet. 

There are reasons why purple-pipes will only ever be a niche solution for small new 

development areas.  One is that they are effectively impossible to retrofit to older suburbs, so 

they only apply to greenfield sites.  Furthermore, they're rarely cost-effective.  The high level of 

treatment needed, and the whole separate water supply system tend to costs more per litre of 

water than customers pay for drinking water, - usually less than 0.3c per litre. 

Like all irrigation, customer demand for purple-pipe water is seasonal.  Most use is for garden 

watering, which is heavy in summer, but much less in winter.  A system that can supply a set 

volume of water will either run short in summer or have too much water in winter.  In some 

areas, this has been managed by topping-up purple-pipe water supplies with drinking water 

during summer. 

Limiting their potential benefit further, areas with purple-pipes are generally not effective at 

saving additional water with rainwater tanks.  The purple pipes are used for watering lawns and 

gardens, meaning that there's little remaining use for rainwater. 

But there is a way in which cities can maximise the water supply benefits available from treated 

wastewater.  That is to treat the water to a sufficiently high quality that it can be safely and 

reliably used as additional drinking water supply.  This approach is truly 'recycling' since the 

water follows an identifiable 'cycle' rather than a linear chain of more limited uses. 

For excellent examples on how to recycle water, we don't need to look far.  Perth began water 

recycling in 2017 with the establishment of the 'Groundwater Replenishment Scheme'.  Water 

from a sewage treatment plant is highly purified by advanced water treatment processes before 

being pumped underground to the groundwater system, which forms an important part of 

Perth's drinking water supply. 

A very large water recycling scheme was also constructed in Brisbane towards the end of the 

Millennium Drought.  Known as the 'Western Corridor Recycled Water Scheme', it consists of 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 27 of 181



three advanced water treatment plants that can purify the treated effluents from almost all of 

Brisbane's sewage.  The highly purified recycled water is then suitable to top-up Brisbane's 

largest drinking water supply, Lake Wivenhoe. 

Soon after the Western Corridor Recycled Water Scheme was built, the drought broke and Lake 

Wivenhoe filled to overflowing.  So the project was mothballed and hasn't yet been used as a 

drinking water supply. 

However, once the storage levels drop to below 60 per cent of capacity, it will be restarted and, 

when ready, will supply recycled water for Brisbane. 

If we plan carefully, water recycling can provide a highly reliable, relatively drought resistant 

supply of safe, clean drinking water to our cities. In many cases, it can be done at lower cost, 

lower energy and lower carbon footprint than seawater desalination. Its an option that should be 

on the table and carefully considered by all Australian cities. 

Dr Stuart Khan is a professor of civil and environmental engineering at UNSW 

This story Real recycling: the way to a sustainable supply of our most precious resource first appeared 

on The Northern Daily Leader. 

 

 
Source: https://www.newcastleherald.com.au/story/6349565/real-recycling-the-way-to-a-sustainable-

supply-of-our-most-precious-resource/?cs=7573 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 28 of 181

https://www.northerndailyleader.com.au/story/6349565/real-recycling-the-way-to-a-sustainable-supply-of-our-most-precious-resource/
http://www.northerndailyleader.com.au/
https://www.newcastleherald.com.au/story/6349565/real-recycling-the-way-to-a-sustainable-supply-of-our-most-precious-resource/?cs=7573
https://www.newcastleherald.com.au/story/6349565/real-recycling-the-way-to-a-sustainable-supply-of-our-most-precious-resource/?cs=7573


 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop  
 

Site Tour of the Webster Ranch Property 
37325 Oak Glen Road, Yucaipa, California 

 
Proper footwear is required since most of the tour will involve  

walking on unpaved areas and uneven surfaces. 
 

Wednesday, September 4, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters 

within its jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the 
meeting agenda.   

III. Site Tour of the Webster Ranch Property 

IV. Presentation of the Green Valley Vineyards by the Green Valley Foundation 

V. Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 29 of 181

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 30 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-089 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Purchase of Additional Software Components for the Caselle Financial 
Package 

Recommendation: That the Board ratify the purchase of the purchase order application for 
a sum not to exceed $3,075. 

 
On June 12, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to execute an 
agreement with Caselle, Inc. for software services that handles utility billing, general ledger, and 
payroll [Director Memorandum 18-092].   
 
On September 18, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to execute a 
contract to purchase the Elements XS Asset Management Software [Director Memorandum 18-
127].  District staff implemented this program in May 2019.  Initially, this program included 
purchase orders as well as inventory management.  District staff has determined that purchase 
orders and inventory would be better managed through the Caselle application as this is where 
all financial data is housed.  
 
The Caselle contract includes inventory management but we have requested to add the purchase 
order application which will be an additional $2,700 for the license plus $375 for training.  The 
coordination between purchasing, accounts payable, and general ledger are much more 
streamlined by utilizing these applications through Caselle.     
 
District Staff is requesting ratification of the agreement for the purchase order application with 
Caselle. 
 
 
Financial Impact 
 
This additional cost of $3,075 will be paid from the Water, Sewer and Recycled Funds. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 31 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-089  Page 2 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 32 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-089  Page 3 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 33 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-089  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 34 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-090 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Request for Proposal for Public Relations Support Services for the Recycled 
Water Program 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the release of the Request for Proposals for 
public relations support services for the recycled water program. 

 
District staff has been working on a Public 
Relations Request for Proposal (RFP), 
one for Recycled Water Program.  The 
District is looking for a PR firm to raise 
awareness and educate people about the 
benefits of the Recycled Water Program.  
The District would like to request a 
proposal from public relations agencies 
than can provide education and 
promotional services to educate both the 
local community, regional communities 
and nationally about the District Recycled 
Water Program. 
 
The Recycled Water Program RFP 
focuses on the benefits of using recycled 
water, water conservation, the District’s 
tertiary treated high quality recycled 
water, dual plumbed communities and the 
recycled water fill station.  The goal of public outreach detailed in the RFP is to educate the 
community on all the aspects of the Recycled Water Program the District has created and the 
benefits it has to the community. 
 
The District is requesting the preparation of various marketing products such as press releases, 
illustrations, videos, brochures, and informational documents.  Attached is the Request for 
Proposal for review. 
 
 
Financial Consideration 
 
There is no financial impact for the execution of this RFP.  Once a vendor is selected, District staff 
will bring the contract before the Board of Directors for approval.   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 35 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 2 of 18 

 

 
 

Request for Proposals 
 

2019 Public Relations  
and Outreach for the  

Recycled Water Program 
 
 

Proposal No. 19xxxx 
 
 

Response Due and Public Bid Opening 
Wednesday, __________, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District 
12770 Second Street 

Yucaipa, California 92399 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Contract Administrators and District Liaison: 
 

Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
khallberg@yvwd.us - Phone (909) 790-3303 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 36 of 181

mailto:khallberg@yvwd.us


Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 3 of 18 

Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District” or ‘District”) is accepting proposals for public relations 
and outreach services from qualified firms (“Proposers”) to assist with the preparation of various 
marketing products such as press releases, illustrations, videos, brochures, and informational 
documents. 
 
This is not a commitment to procure this work, but a request for proposals and the costs to 
complete the work.  The District will decide to proceed based on the proposal pricing submitted. 
 
The final date for submitting a bid proposal is Wednesday, _____, 2019 at 2:00 pm to Kathryn 
Hallberg, 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399.   
 
Your proposal envelope must be sealed and clearly marked “Public Relations and Outreach 
Services Proposal 19xxxx”. 
 
The District reserves the right to accept or to reject any and all bids proposals, to waive any 
irregularities and to make an award that is determined by the District to be in the best interest of 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
Proposals must comply with the proposal requirements provided herein.  Proposals will be 
evaluated and ranked by District staff members.  Proposers must be willing to sign an agreement 
with the terms and conditions. 
 
All questions must be put in writing and sent via email and must be received by 5:00 p.m. on 
________, 2019. Should it be found by the District that the point in question is not clearly and fully 
set forth in the RFP, the District will issue a written addendum clarifying the matter, which will be 
posted on the District’s website and sent by email to individuals registered with the District Liaison 
provided on the title page of this document.  Please note that the District will not be responsible 
for mailing any addenda.  Proposers are encouraged to check the website regularly since each 
Proposer will be responsible for downloading the RFP and all addenda. 
 
Interviews may be scheduled for proposers selected based on criteria in the RFP.  The District 
reserves the right to postpone the interview date, or cancel an interview, at its sole discretion.  
Proposers shall be notified in advance of any such postponement or cancellation. 
 
 

Scope of Services 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District (“District”) is looking for a cost effective, creative approach for 
communicating with and engaging its customers.  The District’s Implementation Managers will 
serve as the lead for public relations and outreach activities.  The purpose of the consultant is to 
assist and augment public relations and outreach support. 
 
The consultant retained shall support the objectives listed below: 
 
A. Create and maintain a positive public perception of the Yucaipa Valley Water District with 

its commitment to the existing Recycled Water Program. 
 
B. Produce communication services and educational materials focusing on the benefits of 

using recycled water, water conservation, the District’s tertiary treated high quality 
recycled water, dual plumbed communities and the recycled water fill station. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 37 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 4 of 18 

C. Provide outreach communications in support of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
Recycled Water Program. 

 
D. Engage the community on the benefits and goals of Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 

strategic initiatives to help build support and education for the Recycled Water Program. 
 
It is important to cover all facets of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Recycled Water program.  
The approach should also include outreach and education, including but not limited to educational 
graphic booklets, video and photos, website, and other public relations mediums to the community 
on the Recycled Water program and a better understanding of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
Tasks to support objectives of the public relations and outreach program should include but are 
not limited to the following: 
 
Communication Services 
 

• Plan and implement a program to gain and enhance the District’s presence involving: 
o Website refresh and upgrades;  
o Video clips;  
o Education booklets; 
o Historical information; and 

• Develop news releases, media advisories, articles, website content and fact sheets for 
District events, initiatives, projects, and services.  

• Develop and design graphic representations of the program facts that can be easily 
conveyed to the public. 

• Provide Spanish translation services for targeted communications pieces  
 
Consultants are encouraged to reply in any way they deem necessary to show a uniqueness of 
approach; knowledge of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s service area and customer base; and 
a complete understanding of the complex issues.  Consultants are further encouraged to describe 
how they would assist the Yucaipa Valley Water District in educating the public on the Recycled 
Water program. 
 
 
Special Considerations: 
 

1. Yucaipa Valley Water District owns all rights to generated, produced draft and final 
materials in native file formats, including intellectual property rights. 
 

2. All products will be provided in electronic formats. 
 

3. This is a contact ending in December 2019.  The contract may be followed by two, one (1) 
year extensions in accordance with approved budgets and specific task approvals by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
 
Proposal Requirements 
 
A. Work Plan and Methodology - Describe the firm’s approach to the project.  The proposal 

should set forth a detailed work plan for completing tasks including a tentative schedule 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 38 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 5 of 18 

with milestones and product deliverables. 
 
B. Project Staffing - Identify the Project Manager and responsibilities of each project team 

member.  Provide a resume of each team member including relevant experience in 
conducting assessments of agencies responsible for public communication and outreach, 
especially on the local government level. 
 
In the event of proposed staff changes, the District will require that replacement staff meet 
the same level of qualifications and equivalent rates as the staff submitted.  The Yucaipa 
Valley Water District reserves the right to approve or reject replacements. 
 

C. Related Experience - Describe recent and relevant experience of the firm in conducting 
communications assessments of water districts responsible for public communications, as 
well as other major relevant projects within the past three years.  Provide a minimum of 
three references including the name of the client, description of work done, dates of the 
project, primary client contact including the address and telephone number, name of the 
firm’s Project Manager and members of the project team.  Finalists will be asked to provide 
samples of public communication and citizen involvement studies completed by the firm 
in the past three years. 
 

D. Proposed Cost - Provide the total cost for the project, including fees, reimbursables, and 
number of hours estimated to be spent on each major work task.  The Yucaipa Valley 
Water District shall not, in any event, be liable for any pre-contractual expenses incurred 
by respondents in preparation of the proposals, and respondents shall not include any 
such expenses as part of their proposal. The Yucaipa Valley Water District shall also not 
be responsible for any associated fees with regard to insurance, licenses, or taxes. 
 

E. Written Agreement - Should the proposer desire to take exception to any term or condition 
set forth in the RFP, said exception must be clearly identified in the response to the RFP.  
Selected consultant must be willing to enter into a written agreement with the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District to provide all services specified in the RFP.  Consultant must also be 
able to secure appropriate professional insurance as required by the District. 

 
 
Evaluation Process and Criteria 
 
A. Each respondent shall meet the requirements as stated in this request for proposal.  Total 

bottom-line costs must be stated in your document.  No additional “add-on” charges after 
the proposal opening will be allowed.  
 

B. Award criteria will include, but is not limited to:  
 

• Qualifications, capabilities, and experience of the firm and individuals performing 
the engagement.  
 

• Step by step approach to the engagement and detailed schedule for completion.  
 

• Completeness and responsiveness of the proposal submitted.  
 

• Reference verification.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 39 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 6 of 18 

 

• All costs pertaining to the engagement including travel and miscellaneous 
expenses.  

 
C. The Yucaipa Valley Water District may waive any informality, irregularity, or error in a 

proposal or in the process for obtaining proposals.   
 

D. The Yucaipa Valley Water District reserves the right to reject any proposal submitted 
which is not in substantial compliance with the requirements set forth in the Request for 
Proposals.   
 

E. The Yucaipa Valley Water District reserves the right to reject all proposals and cancel the 
proposal process.  
 

F. The proposal deemed most advantageous to the Yucaipa Valley Water District will be 
awarded the contract (even though it may not be the proposal with the lowest proposed 
fee).  The District reserves the right to select portions of the proposal based on the fee 
quoted for each major task.  
 

G. Determination of acceptance shall be based on the judgment of the District staff. 
 
 
General Information and Requirements 
 
A. Receiving Office: Sealed proposals will be accepted until Wednesday,_______, 2019 at 

2:00 pm by Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager, 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, 
California 92399.  Bid proposal envelopes must be sealed and clearly marked “Public 
Relations Proposal 19xxxx”.  Late proposals will not be accepted.  Facsimile responses 
will not be accepted.  If the proposal is sent by overnight carrier, proposal is to be within a 
sealed envelope inside the overnight letter pack. 

 
B. Rejection of Proposals:  The District reserves the right to accept or reject any or all 

proposals received as a result of this request.  The District shall not be obligated to award 
a contract solely on the basis of any response made to this Request for Proposal, nor 
does District intend to, nor will it be obligated to pay for the information solicited or 
obtained. 

 
C. Incurred Consultant Costs:  District will not be liable for any costs incurred by Consultants 

or other respondents to this Request for Bid Proposals, prior to issuance of an agreement, 
contract, or other similar acquisition documents. 

 
D. Qualification:  The selected Consultant shall have a proven record of performing work of 

a similar nature to the project described for a minimum of three (3) years.  The Consultant 
may be required to submit the names of three (3) references and include the name of the 
entity, contact person, telephone number and a brief description.  Include an outline 
describing company’s profile and ability to perform the work. 

 
E. Other Provisions:  The Consultant shall list any other criteria or requirements to delineate 

responsibility for any additional items/tasks to be completed by either District or 
Consultant.  These shall be in addition to those previously detailed or explained in this 
Request for Proposals. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 40 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 7 of 18 

 
F. Contract Terms:  If awarded the Contract, the undersigned agrees to start work on this 

project within fifteen (15) working days or as otherwise directed by the District Liaison (or 
designee) in accordance with these specifications. 

 
G. Insurance:  The Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless Yucaipa Valley Water 

District and all his officers, agents  and  employees’ representatives all suits, actions, or 
claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any injuries or 
damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property by or from the said 
Consultants or their employees or by or in consequence of any neglect in  safeguarding 
the work or through the use of unacceptable materials in the work or by or on account of 
any act or omission, neglect, or misconduct of the said Consultant. 

 
Insurance policies must name the Consultant as the insured, along with Yucaipa Valley 
Water District as additional insured, and must not be canceled or materially changed 
without at least 30 days prior notice from the Consultant to Yucaipa Valley Water District.  
The Consultant must submit certificates evidencing the insurance to Yucaipa Valley Water 
District at the time the Consultant executes the contract, and at least 15 days prior to the 
expiration dates of expiring policies. 

 
Certificates of Insurance acceptable to Yucaipa Valley Water District shall be filed with 
Yucaipa Valley Water District prior to commencement of the work.  The Consultant agrees 
that its insurance carriers waive subrogation against Yucaipa Valley Water District, its 
agents, or employees with respect to any loss covered by the Consultant’s insurance. 

 
H. Freedom of Information Act:  Information submitted in Consultant proposals becomes 

public information and as such is subject to public disclosure and review under the 
California Freedom of Information Act. Information contained in the Consultant’s proposal 
which is company confidential must be clearly identified in the proposal itself. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 41 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 8 of 18 

- Exhibit A - 
 

Professional Services Agreement for  
2019 Public Relations and Outreach Services 

 
This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into to be effective as of ______
 , 2019 (“Effective Date”) by and between the following parties (sometimes referred to 
herein individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties”):  
 

District Consultant 

Yucaipa Valley Water District _________________________ 

12770 Second Street _________________________ 

Post Office Box 730 _________________________ 

Yucaipa, California 92399 _________________________ 

Attention: Joseph Zoba, General Manager Attention: _________________ 

Telephone: (909) 797-5119 x2 Telephone: ________________ 

 Tax ID: ___________________ 

 

District Liaison Consultant Liaison 

Name Name 

Title Title 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual benefits, which will result to the 
Parties in carrying out the terms of this Agreement, it is mutually agreed as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Work.  Consultant agrees to furnish necessary professional and technical 

services to accomplish those elements outlined in the Scope of Work attached hereto as 
"Attachment A", and by this reference made a part of this Agreement. 
 
A. The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical 

accuracy, completeness, and coordination of all design, drawings, specifications, 
and other services furnished by the Consultant under this Agreement, including 
the work performed by its Subconsultants.  Where approval by the District is 
indicated, it is understood to be conceptual approval only and does not relieve the 
Consultant of responsibility for complying with all laws, codes, industry standards 
and liability for damages caused by errors, omissions, noncompliance with industry 
standards, and/or negligence on the part of the Consultant or its Subconsultants. 
 

B. Consultant is responsible for the quality of work prepared under this Agreement 
and shall ensure that all work is performed to the standards of best engineering 
practice for clarity, uniformity, and completeness.  In the event that work is not 
performed to the satisfaction of the District and does not conform to the 
requirements of this Agreement or any applicable industry standards, the 
Consultant shall, without additional compensation, promptly correct or revise any 
errors or deficiencies in its designs, drawings, specifications, or other services 
within the timeframe specified by the District Liaison. The District may charge to 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 42 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 9 of 18 

Consultant all costs, expenses and damages associated with any such corrections 
or revisions. 
 

C. All drawings, figures, and other work shall be produced by Consultants and 
Subconsultants using the District standard software or software approved in 
writing.  Electronic files shall be subject to an acceptance period of fourteen (14) 
calendar days during which the District shall perform appropriate acceptance tests.  
Consultant shall correct any discrepancies or errors detected and reported within 
the acceptance period at no additional cost to the District. 
 

D. All professional services performed by the Consultant, including but not limited to 
all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, and estimates compiled or 
composed by the Consultant, pursuant to this Agreement, are for the sole use of 
the District, its agents, and employees.  Neither the documents nor their contents 
shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the District.  
This provision does not apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or 
otherwise known to the Consultant, at the time that it was disclosed to the 
Consultant by the District, (b) subsequently becomes publicly known to the 
Consultant other than through disclosure by the District. 

 
2. Compensation.  Total compensation shall be paid to Consultant for services in accordance 

with the following provisions: 
 
A. Total Compensation. 

 
Total compensation shall be in an amount not to exceed 
__________________________________ ($______).  Total compensation to 
Consultant including burdened labor (salaries plus benefits), overhead, profit, 
direct costs, and subconsultant(s) fees and costs shall not exceed the sum set 
forth in Attachment "B" - Fee Proposal. 
 

B. Labor. 
 
As a portion of the total compensation to be paid to Consultant, the District shall 
pay to Consultant a sum equal to the burdened salaries (salaries plus benefits) 
actually paid by Consultant charged on an hourly-rate basis to this project and paid 
to the personnel of Consultant.  Upon request of the District, Consultant shall 
provide the District with certified payroll records of all employees' work that is 
charged to this project. 
 

C. Direct Costs. 
 
The District shall pay to Consultant and Sub-Consultants the actual costs of 
permits and associated fees, travel, and licenses for an amount not to exceed the 
sum set forth in Attachment "B" - Fee Proposal.  The District shall also pay to 
Consultant actual costs for equipment rentals, leases, or purchases with prior 
written approval of the District.  Upon request, Consultant shall provide to the 
District receipts and other documentary records to support Consultant's request 
for reimbursement of these amounts.  All incidental expenses shall be included in 
overhead pursuant to Section 2.A. above. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 43 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 10 of 18 

D. Limitation of Costs. 
 
If, at any time, Consultant estimates the cost of performing the services described 
in Consultant's Proposal will exceed the not-to-exceed amount of the Agreement, 
including approved additional compensation, Consultant shall notify the District 
immediately, and in writing.  This written notice shall indicate the additional amount 
necessary to complete the services.  Any cost incurred in excess of the approved 
not-to-exceed amount, without the express written consent of the District's 
authorized representative shall be at Consultant's own risk.  This written notice 
shall be provided separately from, and in addition to any notification requirements 
contained in the Consultant's invoice and monthly progress report.  Failure to notify 
the District that the services cannot be completed within the authorized not-to-
exceed amount is a material breach of this Agreement. 
 

E. Reallocation of Total Compensation. 
 
The District, by its General Manager, shall have the right to approve a reallocation 
of the incremental amounts constituting the total compensation, provided that the 
total compensation is not increased. 

 
3. Payment 

 
A. Monthly Invoice. 

 
Consultant shall include in its monthly invoice, a detailed breakdown of costs 
associated with the performance of any corrections or revisions of the work for that 
invoicing period.  Consultant shall allocate costs in the same manner as it would 
for payment requests as described in this Section of the Agreement.  Consultant 
shall warrant and certify the accuracy of these costs and understand that submitted 
costs are subject to Audit Provisions as provided herein. 
 

B. If the District determines that the work under this Agreement or any specified 
project element hereunder, is incomplete and that the amount of payment is in 
excess of: 
 
i. The amount considered by the District's Liaison to be adequate for the 

protection of the District; or 
 

ii. The percentage of the work accomplished for each project element. 
 

The District Liaison may, at the District’s sole discretion, retain an amount equal to 
that which insures that the total amount paid to that date does not exceed the 
percentage of the completed work for each project element or the project in its 
entirety. 
 

4. California Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) Registration and Record of Wages 
 

A. To the extent Consultant's employees and/or subconsultants who will perform 
work for which Prevailing Wage Determinations have been issued by the DIR and 
as more specifically defined under Labor Code Section 1720 et seq, Consultant 
and subconsultants shall comply with the registration requirements of Labor Code 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 44 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 11 of 18 

Section 1725.5. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771.4, the Work is subject to 
compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR. 

 
B. The Consultant and subconsultants shall maintain accurate payroll records and 

shall comply with all the provisions of Labor Code Section 1776 and shall submit 
payroll records to the Labor Commissioner pursuant to Labor Code Section 
1771.4(a) (3). Penalties for non-compliance with the requirements of Section 1776 
may be deducted from progress payments per Section 1776. 

 
C. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776, the Consultant and subconsultants shall 

furnish a copy of all certified payroll records to District and/or general public upon 
request, provided the public request is made through District, the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Enforcement of the 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

 
D. The Consultant and subconsultants shall comply with the job site notices posting 

requirements established by the Labor Commissioner per Title 8, California Code 
of Regulation Section 16461(e). 
 

5. Insurance 
 

A. General 
 
i. Insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies 

acceptable to the District. 
 

ii. Insurers must have an "A-" Policyholder's Rating, or better, and Financial 
Rating of at least Class VIII, or better, in accordance with the most current 
A.M. Best's Guide Rating.  However, the District will accept State 
Compensation Insurance Fund, for the required policy of Worker's 
Compensation Insurance subject to the District's option to require a 
change in insurer in the event the State Fund financial rating is decreased 
below "B".  Further, the District will require Consultant to substitute any 
insurer whose rating drops below the levels herein specified.  Said 
substitution shall occur within twenty (20) days of written notice to 
Consultant, by the District or its agent. 
 

iii. Coverage shall be in effect prior to the commencement of any work under 
this Agreement. 

 
B. General Liability 

 
The Consultant shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, including the 
period of warranty, Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an 
occurrence basis providing the following minimum limits of liability coverage: 

 
i. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence with One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) aggregate.  Said insurance shall include coverage for the 
following hazards: broad form property damage, blanket contractual 
liability, independent Consultant liability, mobile equipment, owners and 
Consultant protective liability, and cross liability and severability of interest 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 45 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 12 of 18 

clauses.  A statement on an insurance certificate will not be accepted in 
lieu of the actual additional insured endorsement(s).   

 
C. Umbrella Excess Liability 

 
The minimum limits of general liability and Automotive Liability Insurance required, 
as set forth herein, shall be provided for through either a single policy of primary 
insurance or a combination of policies of primary and umbrella excess coverage.  
Umbrella excess liability coverage shall be issued with limits of liability which, 
when combined with the primary insurance, will equal the minimum limits for 
general liability and automotive liability. 
 

D. Automotive / Vehicle Liability Insurance 
 
The Consultant shall maintain a policy of Automotive Liability Insurance on a 
comprehensive form covering all owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles, 
trucks, and other vehicles providing the following minimum limits of liability 
coverage: Combined single limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) or 
alternatively, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per person for bodily injury and One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for property damage.  A statement on an 
insurance certificate will not be accepted in lieu of the actual additional insured 
endorsement. 
 

E. Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 
The Consultant shall provide such Workers' Compensation Insurance as required 
by the Labor Code of the State of California in the amount of the statutory limit, 
including Employer's Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence.  Such Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be 
endorsed to provide for a waiver of subrogation in favor of the District.  A statement 
on an insurance certificate will not be accepted in lieu of the actual endorsements 
unless the insurance carrier is State of California Insurance Fund and the identifier 
"SCIF" and endorsement numbers 2570 and 2065 are referenced on the certificate 
of insurance.  If an exposure to Jones Act liability may exist, the insurance required 
herein shall include coverage for Jones Act claims. 
 

F. Cancellation Notice 
 
Each insurance policy required herein shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice.  The policy shall not be cancelled until thirty (30) days after written notice 
is given to the District except for nonpayment of premium, which shall require not 
less than ten (10) days written notice to the District.  Should there be changes in 
coverage or an increase in deductible or SIR amounts, the Consultant shall send 
to the District a certified letter which includes a description of the changes in 
coverage and/or any increase in deductible or SIR amounts.  The certified letter 
must be received by the District as soon as practicable if the change would reduce 
coverage or increase deductibles or SIR amounts or otherwise reduce or limit the 
scope of insurance coverage provided to the District. 
 

G. Subconsultants 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 46 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 13 of 18 

 
The Consultant shall be responsible to establish insurance requirements for any 
Subconsultant hired by the Consultant.  The insurance shall be in amounts and 
types reasonably sufficient to deal with the risk of loss involving the 
Subconsultant's operations and work. 
 

H. Limits are Minimums 
 
If the Consultant maintains higher limits than any minimums shown above, then 
District requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained 
by Consultant. 
 

6. Scope Changes.   
 
In the event of a change in the Scope of Work, requested by District, the parties hereto 
shall execute an amendment to this Agreement setting forth with particularity all terms of 
the new Agreement, including but not limited to any additional Consultant's fees. 
 

7. Project Team and Subconsultants.   
 
Consultant shall provide to District, prior to execution of this Agreement, the names and 
full description of all Subconsultants and Consultant's project team members anticipated 
to be used on this project by Consultant.  Consultant shall include a description of the 
scope of work to be done by each Subconsultant and each Consultant's project team 
member.  Consultant shall include the respective compensation amounts for Consultant 
and each Subconsultant on a per-project-element basis, broken down as indicated in 
Section 2 - Compensation. 
 

8. Legal Relationship Between Parties 
 
The legal relationship between the parties hereto is that of an independent Consultant 
and nothing herein shall be deemed to make Consultant an employee of the District. 
 

9. Notices 
 
All notices hereunder and communications regarding the interpretation of the terms of this 
Agreement, or changes thereto, shall be affected by delivery of said notices in person or 
by depositing said notices in the U.S. mail, registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid.  Notices shall be mailed to the District and Consultant as 
provided above. 
 
All communication regarding the Scope of Work, will be addressed to the Project Liaison.  
Direction from other District's staff must be approved in writing by the District's Liaison 
prior to action from the Consultant. 
 

10. Termination 
 
The District may terminate this Agreement at any time, without cause, upon giving thirty 
(30) days written notice to Consultant.  In the event of such termination, Consultant shall 
be entitled to compensation for work performed on a prorated basis through and including 
the effective date of termination. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 47 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 14 of 18 

 
Consultant shall be permitted to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written 
notice only if Consultant is not compensated for billed amounts in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, when the same are due. 

 
Notice of termination shall be mailed to the District and/or Consultant in accordance with 
the Notices provisions contained herein. 
 

11. Documents and Study Materials 
 
The documents and study materials for this project shall become the property of the 
District upon the termination or completion of the work.  Consultant agrees to furnish to 
the District copies of all memoranda, correspondence, computation, and study materials 
in its files pertaining to the work described in this Agreement. 
 

12. Compliance 
 
Consultant certifies by the execution of this Agreement that it pays employees not less 
than the minimum wage as defined by law, and that it does not discriminate in its 
employment with regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin; that it is in 
compliance with all federal, state and local directives and executive orders regarding non-
discrimination in employment; and that it agrees to demonstrate positively and 
aggressively the principle of equal opportunity in employment. 
 

13. Agreement Execution Authorization 
 
Both the District and Consultant do covenant that each individual executing this document 
by and on behalf of each party is a person duly authorized to execute agreements for that 
party. 
 

14. Dispute Resolution 
 
In the event of a dispute arising between the parties regarding performance or 
interpretation of this Agreement, the dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitration under 
the auspices of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS"), or similar 
organization or entity conducting alternate dispute resolution services. 
 

15. Attorney’s Fees, Costs and Necessary Disbursements 
 
If any action at law or in equity or if any proceeding in the form of an Alternative Dispute 
Resolution (ADR) is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, costs and necessary 
disbursements in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 
 

16. Progress Reports 
 
Monthly progress reports shall be submitted for review by the tenth day of the following 
month and must include as a minimum:  

• Current activities,  

• Future activities,  

• Potential items that are not included in the Scope of Work,  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 48 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 15 of 18 

• Concerns and possible delays,  

• Percentage of completion, and  

• Budget status. 
 

17. Indemnification 
 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend (at Consultant's 
sole cost and expense and with legal counsel approved by the District, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld), protect and hold harmless the District and all of 
District's officers, directors, employees, Consultants, and agents (collectively the 
"Indemnified Parties"), from and against any and all claims, damages, liabilities, causes 
of action, suits, arbitration awards, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, costs and 
expenses including without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, disbursements and 
court costs, and all other professional, expert or Consultants fees and costs and the 
District's general and administrative expenses (individually, a "Claim", or collectively, 
"Claims") which may arise from or are in any manner related, directly or indirectly, to any 
work performed, or any operations, activities, or services provided by Consultant in 
carrying out its obligations under this Agreement to the extent of the negligent, 
recklessness and/or willful misconduct of Consultant, its principals, officers, agents, 
employees, Consultant's suppliers, Consultants, subconsultants, and/or anyone 
employed directly or indirectly by any of them.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing 
herein shall be construed to require Consultant to indemnify the Indemnified Parties from 
any Claim arising from: 
 
A. The sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties; or 

 
B. A natural disaster or other act of God, such as an earthquake; or 

 
C. The independent action of a third party who is neither one of the Indemnified 

Parties nor the Consultant, nor its principal, officer, agent, employee, nor 
Consultant's supplier, Consultant, subconsultant, nor anyone employed directly or 
indirectly by any of them. 

 
The terms of this Agreement are contractual and the result of negotiation between the 
parties hereto.  Accordingly, any rule of construction of contracts (including, without 
limitation, California Civil Code Section 1654) that ambiguities are to be construed against 
the drafting party, shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
18. Force Majeure 

 
Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other for any failure of performance 
where such failure of performance is caused by or is the result of causes beyond the 
reasonable control of the other party due to any occurrence commonly known as a "force 
majeure," including, but not limited to: acts of God; fire, flood, or other natural catastrophe; 
acts of any governmental body; labor dispute or shortage; national emergency; 
insurrection; riot; or war. 

 
19. Independent Consultant. 
 

A. Status.  The Parties hereby acknowledge that in rendering the Services provided 
hereunder, Consultant shall be deemed to be an independent Consultant and shall 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 49 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 16 of 18 

not be deemed in any way an agent, partner or joint venturer of the District.  
Consultant acknowledges and agrees that, as an independent Consultant, it is 
solely responsible for the payment of any and all taxes and/or assessments 
imposed on account of payment to Consultant or the performance of Services by 
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
B. Agency Restrictions.  Consultant understands and agrees that Consultant shall not 

represent itself to third parties to be the agent, employee, partner or joint venturer 
of the District.  Furthermore, Consultant shall not make any statements on behalf 
of or otherwise purporting to bind the District in any contract or otherwise related 
agreement.  Consultant further agrees and acknowledges that Consultant does not 
have the authority to and shall not sign any contract on behalf of the District or any 
of its subsidiaries or affiliates.  Consultant shall not obligate the District or any of 
its subsidiaries or affiliates to do any other act that would bind the District or any 
of its subsidiaries or affiliates in any manner. 

 
20. Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties and supersedes any prior understandings, agreements, or representations 
by or between the Parties, written or oral, to the extent they have related in any way 
to the subject matter hereof. 

 
B. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not confer any rights or 

remedies upon any person or entity other than the Parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 

 
C. Succession. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

Parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 

D. Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for 
convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of 
this Agreement 

 
E. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the domestic laws of the State of California without giving effect 
to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of California 
or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the laws of any 
jurisdiction other than the State of California.  Venue for any suit, action or 
proceeding shall exist exclusively in the courts having jurisdiction over the County 
of San Bernardino. 

 
F. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together will constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

 
G. Waivers. No waiver by any Party of any default, misrepresentation, or breach of 

warranty or covenant hereunder, whether intentional or not, shall be deemed to 
extend to any prior or subsequent default, misrepresentation, or breach of warranty 
or covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising by virtue of any prior 
or subsequent occurrence. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 50 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 17 of 18 

 
H. Amendment. Except as expressly provided otherwise herein, this Agreement may 

not be amended without the express written consent of both Parties. 
 

I. Severability. Any term or provision of this Agreement that is invalid or 
unenforceable in any situation in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or 
enforceability of the offending term or provision in any other situation or in any 
other jurisdiction. 

 
J. Release of Information and Advertising. Consultant shall not, without the prior 

written consent of District, make any news release or other public disclosure 
regarding this Project. 

 
K. Construction. The Parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting 

of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation 
arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the Parties and no 
presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by 
virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement. Any reference 
to any federal, state, local, or foreign statute or law shall be deemed also to refer to 
all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, unless the context requires 
otherwise. The word “including” shall mean including without limitation. 

 
L. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms 

of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, reasonable expert witness fees, costs, and necessary disbursements in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed is Agreement to be effective on the day and 
year first above written.   
 

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

Dated:  By:  

   Chris Mann, Board President 

 
 

CONSULTANT 

Dated:  By:  

Print Name:  

Print Title:  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 51 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-090  Page 18 of 18 

 
 
 

 
Attachment A - Scope of Work 

 
 
 

Attachment B - Fee Proposal 
 
 
 

Attachment C - Schedule 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 52 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-091 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Request for Proposal for Public Relations Support Services for the San 
Timoteo Creek Habitat Monitoring Program and the San Timoteo GSA 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the release of the Request for Proposals for 
public relations support services for the San Timoteo creek habitat 
monitoring program and the San Timoteo GSA. 

 
District staff has been working on a 
Public Relations (PR) Request for 
Proposal (RFP) for the San Timoteo 
Creek Habitat Monitoring Program and 
the San Timoteo GSA.  The District is 
interested in a PR firm to raise 
awareness and educate the community 
about the benefits of program.  The 
District would like to request proposals 
from public relation agencies that can 
provide educational and promotional 
services to educate both the local 
community and the regional communities 
about the San Timoteo Creek Habitat 
Monitoring Program. 
 
The objectives of the RFP are focused on 
generating knowledge for improving the 
awareness of San Timoteo Creek Habitat 
Monitoring Program, educating the 
community of the benefits of maintaining the habitat, the health of the habitat, and the internal 
and external factors effecting the habitat, and groundwater conditions related to the San Timoteo 
GSA management plan.   
 
The District is requesting the preparation of various marketing products such as press releases, 
illustrations, videos, brochures, and informational documents.  Attached is the draft Request for 
Proposal for review. 
 
 
Financial Consideration 
 
There is no financial impact for the execution of this RFP.  Once a vendor is selected, District staff 
will bring the contract before the Board of Directors for approval.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 53 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 2 of 18 

 

 

 
Request for Proposals 

 
 

2019 Public Relations  
and Outreach for the  

San Timoteo Creek Habitat 
Monitoring Program and the  

San Timoteo GSA 
 
 

Proposal No. 19xxxx 
 
 

Response Due and Public Bid Opening 
Wednesday, __________, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District 
12770 Second Street 

Yucaipa, California 92399 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Contract Administrators and District Liaison: 
 

Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 
khallberg@yvwd.us - Phone (909) 790-3303 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 54 of 181

mailto:khallberg@yvwd.us


Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 3 of 18 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District” or ‘District”) is accepting proposals for public relations 
and outreach services from qualified firms (“Proposers”) to assist with the preparation of various 
marketing products such as press releases, illustrations, videos, brochures, and informational 
documents. 
 
This is not a commitment to procure this work, but a request for proposals and the costs to 
complete the work.  The District will decide to proceed based on the proposal pricing submitted. 
 
The final date for submitting a bid proposal is Wednesday, _____, 2019 at 2:00 pm to Kathryn 
Hallberg, 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399.   
 
Your proposal envelope must be sealed and clearly marked “Public Relations and Outreach 
Services Proposal 19xxxx”. 
 
The District reserves the right to accept or to reject any and all bids proposals, to waive any 
irregularities and to make an award that is determined by the District to be in the best interest of 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
Proposals must comply with the proposal requirements provided herein.  Proposals will be 
evaluated and ranked by District staff members.  Proposers must be willing to sign an agreement 
with the terms and conditions. 
 
All questions must be put in writing and sent via email and must be received by 5:00 p.m. on 
________, 2019. Should it be found by the District that the point in question is not clearly and fully 
set forth in the RFP, the District will issue a written addendum clarifying the matter, which will be 
posted on the District’s website and sent by email to individuals registered with the District Liaison 
provided on the title page of this document.  Please note that the District will not be responsible 
for mailing any addenda.  Proposers are encouraged to check the website regularly since each 
Proposer will be responsible for downloading the RFP and all addenda. 
 
Interviews may be scheduled for proposers selected based on criteria in the RFP.  The District 
reserves the right to postpone the interview date, or cancel an interview, at its sole discretion.  
Proposers shall be notified in advance of any such postponement or cancellation. 
 
 

Scope of Services 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District (“District”) is looking for a cost effective, creative approach for 
communicating with and engaging its customers.  The District’s Implementation Managers will 
serve as the lead for public relations and outreach activities.  The purpose of the consultant is to 
assist and augment public relations and outreach support. 
 
The consultant retained shall support the objectives listed below: 
 
A. Create and maintain a positive public perception of the Yucaipa Valley Water District with 

its commitment to maintain the existing riparian habitat in San Timoteo Creek Habitat 
Monitoring Program. 

 
B. Provide outreach communications in support of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s San 

Timoteo Creek Habitat Monitoring Program. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 55 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 4 of 18 

 
C. Create education materials for communication services describing the climate, hydrology, 

species and vegetative communities present in San Timoteo Creek. 
 

D. Create educational materials for communication services detailing outside influences 
impacting the San Timoteo Creek riparian habitat. 

 
E. Engage the community on the benefits and goals of Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 

strategic initiatives to help maintain the San Timoteo Creek for habitat support and 
monitoring. 

 
F. Build a stakeholders list and outreach material for the groundwater management efforts 

by the District in the San Timoteo area. 
 
It is important to cover all facets of the San Timoteo Creek Habitat Monitoring Program.  The 
approach should also include outreach and education, including but not limited to educational 
graphic booklets, video and photos, website, and other public relations mediums to the community 
on the San Timoteo Creek Habitat Monitoring Program and a better understanding of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District. 
 
Tasks to support objectives of the public relations and outreach program should include but are 
not limited to the following: 
 
Communication Services 
 

• Plan and implement a program to gain and enhance the District’s presence involving: 
o Website refresh and upgrades;  
o Video clips;  
o Education booklets; 
o Historical information; and 

• Develop news releases, media advisories, articles, website content and fact sheets for 
District events, initiatives, projects, and services.  

• Develop and design graphic representations of the program facts that can be easily 
conveyed to the public. 

• Provide Spanish translation services for targeted communications pieces  
 
Consultants are encouraged to reply in any way they deem necessary to show a uniqueness of 
approach; knowledge of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s service area and customer base; and 
a complete understanding of the complex issues.  Consultants are further encouraged to describe 
how they would assist the Yucaipa Valley Water District in educating the public on the San 
Timoteo Creek Habitat Monitoring Program. 
 
 
Special Considerations: 
 

1. Yucaipa Valley Water District owns all rights to generated, produced draft and final 
materials in native file formats, including intellectual property rights. 
 

2. All products will be provided in electronic formats. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 56 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 5 of 18 

3. This is a contact ending in December 2020.  The contract may be followed by two, one (1) 
year extensions in accordance with approved budgets and specific task approvals by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
 
Proposal Requirements 
 
A. Work Plan and Methodology - Describe the firm’s approach to the project.  The proposal 

should set forth a detailed work plan for completing tasks including a tentative schedule 
with milestones and product deliverables. 

 
B. Project Staffing - Identify the Project Manager and responsibilities of each project team 

member.  Provide a resume of each team member including relevant experience in 
conducting assessments of agencies responsible for public communication and outreach, 
especially on the local government level. 
 
In the event of proposed staff changes, the District will require that replacement staff meet 
the same level of qualifications and equivalent rates as the staff submitted.  The Yucaipa 
Valley Water District reserves the right to approve or reject replacements. 
 

C. Related Experience - Describe recent and relevant experience of the firm in conducting 
communications assessments of water districts responsible for public communications, as 
well as other major relevant projects within the past three years.  Provide a minimum of 
three references including the name of the client, description of work done, dates of the 
project, primary client contact including the address and telephone number, name of the 
firm’s Project Manager and members of the project team.  Finalists will be asked to provide 
samples of public communication and citizen involvement studies completed by the firm 
in the past three years. 
 

D. Proposed Cost - Provide the total cost for the project, including fees, reimbursables, and 
number of hours estimated to be spent on each major work task.  The Yucaipa Valley 
Water District shall not, in any event, be liable for any pre-contractual expenses incurred 
by respondents in preparation of the proposals, and respondents shall not include any 
such expenses as part of their proposal. The Yucaipa Valley Water District shall also not 
be responsible for any associated fees with regard to insurance, licenses, or taxes. 
 

E. Written Agreement - Should the proposer desire to take exception to any term or condition 
set forth in the RFP, said exception must be clearly identified in the response to the RFP.  
Selected consultant must be willing to enter into a written agreement with the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District to provide all services specified in the RFP.  Consultant must also be 
able to secure appropriate professional insurance as required by the District. 

 
 
Evaluation Process and Criteria 
 
A. Each respondent shall meet the requirements as stated in this request for proposal.  Total 

bottom-line costs must be stated in your document.  No additional “add-on” charges after 
the proposal opening will be allowed.  
 

B. Award criteria will include, but is not limited to:  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 57 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 6 of 18 

• Qualifications, capabilities, and experience of the firm and individuals performing 
the engagement.  
 

• Step by step approach to the engagement and detailed schedule for completion.  
 

• Completeness and responsiveness of the proposal submitted.  
 

• Reference verification.  
 

• All costs pertaining to the engagement including travel and miscellaneous 
expenses.  

 
C. The Yucaipa Valley Water District may waive any informality, irregularity, or error in a 

proposal or in the process for obtaining proposals.   
 

D. The Yucaipa Valley Water District reserves the right to reject any proposal submitted 
which is not in substantial compliance with the requirements set forth in the Request for 
Proposals.   
 

E. The Yucaipa Valley Water District reserves the right to reject all proposals and cancel the 
proposal process.  
 

F. The proposal deemed most advantageous to the Yucaipa Valley Water District will be 
awarded the contract (even though it may not be the proposal with the lowest proposed 
fee).  The District reserves the right to select portions of the proposal based on the fee 
quoted for each major task.  
 

G. Determination of acceptance shall be based on the judgment of the District staff. 
 
 
General Information and Requirements 
 
A. Receiving Office: Sealed proposals will be accepted until Wednesday,_______, 2019 at 

2:00 pm by Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager, 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, 
California 92399.  Bid proposal envelopes must be sealed and clearly marked “Public 
Relations Proposal 19xxxx”.  Late proposals will not be accepted.  Facsimile responses 
will not be accepted.  If the proposal is sent by overnight carrier, proposal is to be within a 
sealed envelope inside the overnight letter pack. 

 
B. Rejection of Proposals:  The District reserves the right to accept or reject any or all 

proposals received as a result of this request.  The District shall not be obligated to award 
a contract solely on the basis of any response made to this Request for Proposal, nor 
does District intend to, nor will it be obligated to pay for the information solicited or 
obtained. 

 
C. Incurred Consultant Costs:  District will not be liable for any costs incurred by Consultants 

or other respondents to this Request for Bid Proposals, prior to issuance of an agreement, 
contract, or other similar acquisition documents. 

 
D. Qualification:  The selected Consultant shall have a proven record of performing work of 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 58 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 7 of 18 

a similar nature to the project described for a minimum of three (3) years.  The Consultant 
may be required to submit the names of three (3) references and include the name of the 
entity, contact person, telephone number and a brief description.  Include an outline 
describing company’s profile and ability to perform the work. 

 
E. Other Provisions:  The Consultant shall list any other criteria or requirements to delineate 

responsibility for any additional items/tasks to be completed by either District or 
Consultant.  These shall be in addition to those previously detailed or explained in this 
Request for Proposals. 

 
F. Contract Terms:  If awarded the Contract, the undersigned agrees to start work on this 

project within fifteen (15) working days or as otherwise directed by the District Liaison (or 
designee) in accordance with these specifications. 

 
G. Insurance:  The Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless Yucaipa Valley Water 

District and all his officers, agents  and  employees’ representatives all suits, actions, or 
claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any injuries or 
damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property by or from the said 
Consultants or their employees or by or in consequence of any neglect in  safeguarding 
the work or through the use of unacceptable materials in the work or by or on account of 
any act or omission, neglect, or misconduct of the said Consultant. 

 
Insurance policies must name the Consultant as the insured, along with Yucaipa Valley 
Water District as additional insured, and must not be canceled or materially changed 
without at least 30 days prior notice from the Consultant to Yucaipa Valley Water District.  
The Consultant must submit certificates evidencing the insurance to Yucaipa Valley Water 
District at the time the Consultant executes the contract, and at least 15 days prior to the 
expiration dates of expiring policies. 

 
Certificates of Insurance acceptable to Yucaipa Valley Water District shall be filed with 
Yucaipa Valley Water District prior to commencement of the work.  The Consultant agrees 
that its insurance carriers waive subrogation against Yucaipa Valley Water District, its 
agents, or employees with respect to any loss covered by the Consultant’s insurance. 

 
H. Freedom of Information Act:  Information submitted in Consultant proposals becomes 

public information and as such is subject to public disclosure and review under the 
California Freedom of Information Act. Information contained in the Consultant’s proposal 
which is company confidential must be clearly identified in the proposal itself. 

 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 59 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 8 of 18 

- Exhibit A - 
 

Professional Services Agreement for  
2019 Public Relations and Outreach Services 

 
This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into to be effective as of ______
 , 2019 (“Effective Date”) by and between the following parties (sometimes referred to 
herein individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties”):  
 

District Consultant 

Yucaipa Valley Water District _________________________ 

12770 Second Street _________________________ 

Post Office Box 730 _________________________ 

Yucaipa, California 92399 _________________________ 

Attention: Joseph Zoba, General Manager Attention: _________________ 

Telephone: (909) 797-5119 x2 Telephone: ________________ 

 Tax ID: ___________________ 

 

District Liaison Consultant Liaison 

Name Name 

Title Title 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual benefits, which will result to the 
Parties in carrying out the terms of this Agreement, it is mutually agreed as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Work.  Consultant agrees to furnish necessary professional and technical 

services to accomplish those elements outlined in the Scope of Work attached hereto as 
"Attachment A", and by this reference made a part of this Agreement. 
 
A. The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical 

accuracy, completeness, and coordination of all design, drawings, specifications, 
and other services furnished by the Consultant under this Agreement, including 
the work performed by its Subconsultants.  Where approval by the District is 
indicated, it is understood to be conceptual approval only and does not relieve the 
Consultant of responsibility for complying with all laws, codes, industry standards 
and liability for damages caused by errors, omissions, noncompliance with industry 
standards, and/or negligence on the part of the Consultant or its Subconsultants. 
 

B. Consultant is responsible for the quality of work prepared under this Agreement 
and shall ensure that all work is performed to the standards of best engineering 
practice for clarity, uniformity, and completeness.  In the event that work is not 
performed to the satisfaction of the District and does not conform to the 
requirements of this Agreement or any applicable industry standards, the 
Consultant shall, without additional compensation, promptly correct or revise any 
errors or deficiencies in its designs, drawings, specifications, or other services 
within the timeframe specified by the District Liaison. The District may charge to 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 60 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 9 of 18 

Consultant all costs, expenses and damages associated with any such corrections 
or revisions. 
 

C. All drawings, figures, and other work shall be produced by Consultants and 
Subconsultants using the District standard software or software approved in 
writing.  Electronic files shall be subject to an acceptance period of fourteen (14) 
calendar days during which the District shall perform appropriate acceptance tests.  
Consultant shall correct any discrepancies or errors detected and reported within 
the acceptance period at no additional cost to the District. 
 

D. All professional services performed by the Consultant, including but not limited to 
all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, and estimates compiled or 
composed by the Consultant, pursuant to this Agreement, are for the sole use of 
the District, its agents, and employees.  Neither the documents nor their contents 
shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the District.  
This provision does not apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or 
otherwise known to the Consultant, at the time that it was disclosed to the 
Consultant by the District, (b) subsequently becomes publicly known to the 
Consultant other than through disclosure by the District. 

 
2. Compensation.  Total compensation shall be paid to Consultant for services in accordance 

with the following provisions: 
 
A. Total Compensation. 

 
Total compensation shall be in an amount not to exceed 
__________________________________ ($______).  Total compensation to 
Consultant including burdened labor (salaries plus benefits), overhead, profit, 
direct costs, and subconsultant(s) fees and costs shall not exceed the sum set 
forth in Attachment "B" - Fee Proposal. 
 

B. Labor. 
 
As a portion of the total compensation to be paid to Consultant, the District shall 
pay to Consultant a sum equal to the burdened salaries (salaries plus benefits) 
actually paid by Consultant charged on an hourly-rate basis to this project and paid 
to the personnel of Consultant.  Upon request of the District, Consultant shall 
provide the District with certified payroll records of all employees' work that is 
charged to this project. 
 

C. Direct Costs. 
 
The District shall pay to Consultant and Sub-Consultants the actual costs of 
permits and associated fees, travel, and licenses for an amount not to exceed the 
sum set forth in Attachment "B" - Fee Proposal.  The District shall also pay to 
Consultant actual costs for equipment rentals, leases, or purchases with prior 
written approval of the District.  Upon request, Consultant shall provide to the 
District receipts and other documentary records to support Consultant's request 
for reimbursement of these amounts.  All incidental expenses shall be included in 
overhead pursuant to Section 2.A. above. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 61 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 10 of 18 

D. Limitation of Costs. 
 
If, at any time, Consultant estimates the cost of performing the services described 
in Consultant's Proposal will exceed the not-to-exceed amount of the Agreement, 
including approved additional compensation, Consultant shall notify the District 
immediately, and in writing.  This written notice shall indicate the additional amount 
necessary to complete the services.  Any cost incurred in excess of the approved 
not-to-exceed amount, without the express written consent of the District's 
authorized representative shall be at Consultant's own risk.  This written notice 
shall be provided separately from, and in addition to any notification requirements 
contained in the Consultant's invoice and monthly progress report.  Failure to notify 
the District that the services cannot be completed within the authorized not-to-
exceed amount is a material breach of this Agreement. 
 

E. Reallocation of Total Compensation. 
 
The District, by its General Manager, shall have the right to approve a reallocation 
of the incremental amounts constituting the total compensation, provided that the 
total compensation is not increased. 

 
3. Payment 

 
A. Monthly Invoice. 

 
Consultant shall include in its monthly invoice, a detailed breakdown of costs 
associated with the performance of any corrections or revisions of the work for that 
invoicing period.  Consultant shall allocate costs in the same manner as it would 
for payment requests as described in this Section of the Agreement.  Consultant 
shall warrant and certify the accuracy of these costs and understand that submitted 
costs are subject to Audit Provisions as provided herein. 
 

B. If the District determines that the work under this Agreement or any specified 
project element hereunder, is incomplete and that the amount of payment is in 
excess of: 
 
i. The amount considered by the District's Liaison to be adequate for the 

protection of the District; or 
 

ii. The percentage of the work accomplished for each project element. 
 

The District Liaison may, at the District’s sole discretion, retain an amount equal to 
that which ensures that the total amount paid to that date does not exceed the 
percentage of the completed work for each project element or the project in its 
entirety. 
 

4. California Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) Registration and Record of Wages 
 

A. To the extent Consultant's employees and/or subconsultants who will perform 
work for which Prevailing Wage Determinations have been issued by the DIR and 
as more specifically defined under Labor Code Section 1720 et seq, Consultant 
and subconsultants shall comply with the registration requirements of Labor Code 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 62 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 11 of 18 

Section 1725.5. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771.4, the Work is subject to 
compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR. 

 
B. The Consultant and subconsultants shall maintain accurate payroll records and 

shall comply with all the provisions of Labor Code Section 1776 and shall submit 
payroll records to the Labor Commissioner pursuant to Labor Code Section 
1771.4(a) (3). Penalties for non-compliance with the requirements of Section 1776 
may be deducted from progress payments per Section 1776. 

 
C. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776, the Consultant and subconsultants shall 

furnish a copy of all certified payroll records to District and/or general public upon 
request, provided the public request is made through District, the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Enforcement of the 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

 
D. The Consultant and subconsultants shall comply with the job site notices posting 

requirements established by the Labor Commissioner per Title 8, California Code 
of Regulation Section 16461(e). 
 

5. Insurance 
 

A. General 
 
i. Insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies 

acceptable to the District. 
 

ii. Insurers must have an "A-" Policyholder's Rating, or better, and Financial 
Rating of at least Class VIII, or better, in accordance with the most current 
A.M. Best's Guide Rating.  However, the District will accept State 
Compensation Insurance Fund, for the required policy of Worker's 
Compensation Insurance subject to the District's option to require a 
change in insurer in the event the State Fund financial rating is decreased 
below "B".  Further, the District will require Consultant to substitute any 
insurer whose rating drops below the levels herein specified.  Said 
substitution shall occur within twenty (20) days of written notice to 
Consultant, by the District or its agent. 
 

iii. Coverage shall be in effect prior to the commencement of any work under 
this Agreement. 

 
B. General Liability 

 
The Consultant shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, including the 
period of warranty, Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an 
occurrence basis providing the following minimum limits of liability coverage: 

 
i. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence with One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) aggregate.  Said insurance shall include coverage for the 
following hazards: broad form property damage, blanket contractual 
liability, independent Consultant liability, mobile equipment, owners and 
Consultant protective liability, and cross liability and severability of interest 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 63 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 12 of 18 

clauses.  A statement on an insurance certificate will not be accepted in 
lieu of the actual additional insured endorsement(s).   

 
C. Umbrella Excess Liability 

 
The minimum limits of general liability and Automotive Liability Insurance required, 
as set forth herein, shall be provided for through either a single policy of primary 
insurance or a combination of policies of primary and umbrella excess coverage.  
Umbrella excess liability coverage shall be issued with limits of liability which, 
when combined with the primary insurance, will equal the minimum limits for 
general liability and automotive liability. 
 

D. Automotive / Vehicle Liability Insurance 
 
The Consultant shall maintain a policy of Automotive Liability Insurance on a 
comprehensive form covering all owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles, 
trucks, and other vehicles providing the following minimum limits of liability 
coverage: Combined single limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) or 
alternatively, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per person for bodily injury and One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for property damage.  A statement on an 
insurance certificate will not be accepted in lieu of the actual additional insured 
endorsement. 
 

E. Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 
The Consultant shall provide such Workers' Compensation Insurance as required 
by the Labor Code of the State of California in the amount of the statutory limit, 
including Employer's Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence.  Such Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be 
endorsed to provide for a waiver of subrogation in favor of the District.  A statement 
on an insurance certificate will not be accepted in lieu of the actual endorsements 
unless the insurance carrier is State of California Insurance Fund and the identifier 
"SCIF" and endorsement numbers 2570 and 2065 are referenced on the certificate 
of insurance.  If an exposure to Jones Act liability may exist, the insurance required 
herein shall include coverage for Jones Act claims. 
 

F. Cancellation Notice 
 
Each insurance policy required herein shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice.  The policy shall not be cancelled until thirty (30) days after written notice 
is given to the District except for nonpayment of premium, which shall require not 
less than ten (10) days written notice to the District.  Should there be changes in 
coverage or an increase in deductible or SIR amounts, the Consultant shall send 
to the District a certified letter which includes a description of the changes in 
coverage and/or any increase in deductible or SIR amounts.  The certified letter 
must be received by the District as soon as practicable if the change would reduce 
coverage or increase deductibles or SIR amounts or otherwise reduce or limit the 
scope of insurance coverage provided to the District. 
 

G. Subconsultants 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 64 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 13 of 18 

 
The Consultant shall be responsible to establish insurance requirements for any 
Subconsultant hired by the Consultant.  The insurance shall be in amounts and 
types reasonably sufficient to deal with the risk of loss involving the 
Subconsultant's operations and work. 
 

H. Limits are Minimums 
 
If the Consultant maintains higher limits than any minimums shown above, then 
District requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained 
by Consultant. 
 

6. Scope Changes.   
 
In the event of a change in the Scope of Work, requested by District, the parties hereto 
shall execute an amendment to this Agreement setting forth with particularity all terms of 
the new Agreement, including but not limited to any additional Consultant's fees. 
 

7. Project Team and Subconsultants.   
 
Consultant shall provide to District, prior to execution of this Agreement, the names and 
full description of all Subconsultants and Consultant's project team members anticipated 
to be used on this project by Consultant.  Consultant shall include a description of the 
scope of work to be done by each Subconsultant and each Consultant's project team 
member.  Consultant shall include the respective compensation amounts for Consultant 
and each Subconsultant on a per-project-element basis, broken down as indicated in 
Section 2 - Compensation. 
 

8. Legal Relationship Between Parties 
 
The legal relationship between the parties hereto is that of an independent Consultant 
and nothing herein shall be deemed to make Consultant an employee of the District. 
 

9. Notices 
 
All notices hereunder and communications regarding the interpretation of the terms of this 
Agreement, or changes thereto, shall be affected by delivery of said notices in person or 
by depositing said notices in the U.S. mail, registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid.  Notices shall be mailed to the District and Consultant as 
provided above. 
 
All communication regarding the Scope of Work, will be addressed to the Project Liaison.  
Direction from other District's staff must be approved in writing by the District's Liaison 
prior to action from the Consultant. 
 

10. Termination 
 
The District may terminate this Agreement at any time, without cause, upon giving thirty 
(30) days written notice to Consultant.  In the event of such termination, Consultant shall 
be entitled to compensation for work performed on a prorated basis through and including 
the effective date of termination. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 65 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 14 of 18 

 
Consultant shall be permitted to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written 
notice only if Consultant is not compensated for billed amounts in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, when the same are due. 

 
Notice of termination shall be mailed to the District and/or Consultant in accordance with 
the Notices provisions contained herein. 
 

11. Documents and Study Materials 
 
The documents and study materials for this project shall become the property of the 
District upon the termination or completion of the work.  Consultant agrees to furnish to 
the District copies of all memoranda, correspondence, computation, and study materials 
in its files pertaining to the work described in this Agreement. 
 

12. Compliance 
 
Consultant certifies by the execution of this Agreement that it pays employees not less 
than the minimum wage as defined by law, and that it does not discriminate in its 
employment with regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin; that it is in 
compliance with all federal, state and local directives and executive orders regarding non-
discrimination in employment; and that it agrees to demonstrate positively and 
aggressively the principle of equal opportunity in employment. 
 

13. Agreement Execution Authorization 
 
Both the District and Consultant do covenant that each individual executing this document 
by and on behalf of each party is a person duly authorized to execute agreements for that 
party. 
 

14. Dispute Resolution 
 
In the event of a dispute arising between the parties regarding performance or 
interpretation of this Agreement, the dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitration under 
the auspices of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS"), or similar 
organization or entity conducting alternate dispute resolution services. 
 

15. Attorney’s Fees, Costs and Necessary Disbursements 
 
If any action at law or in equity or if any proceeding in the form of an Alternative Dispute 
Resolution (ADR) is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, costs and necessary 
disbursements in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 
 

16. Progress Reports 
 
Monthly progress reports shall be submitted for review by the tenth day of the following 
month and must include as a minimum:  

• Current activities,  

• Future activities,  

• Potential items that are not included in the Scope of Work,  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 66 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 15 of 18 

• Concerns and possible delays,  

• Percentage of completion, and  

• Budget status. 
 

17. Indemnification 
 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend (at Consultant's 
sole cost and expense and with legal counsel approved by the District, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld), protect and hold harmless the District and all of 
District's officers, directors, employees, Consultants, and agents (collectively the 
"Indemnified Parties"), from and against any and all claims, damages, liabilities, causes 
of action, suits, arbitration awards, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, costs and 
expenses including without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, disbursements and 
court costs, and all other professional, expert or Consultants fees and costs and the 
District's general and administrative expenses (individually, a "Claim", or collectively, 
"Claims") which may arise from or are in any manner related, directly or indirectly, to any 
work performed, or any operations, activities, or services provided by Consultant in 
carrying out its obligations under this Agreement to the extent of the negligent, 
recklessness and/or willful misconduct of Consultant, its principals, officers, agents, 
employees, Consultant's suppliers, Consultants, subconsultants and/or anyone employed 
directly or indirectly by any of them.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall 
be construed to require Consultant to indemnify the Indemnified Parties from any Claim 
arising from: 
 
A. The sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties; or 

 
B. A natural disaster or other act of God, such as an earthquake; or 

 
C. The independent action of a third party who is neither one of the Indemnified 

Parties nor the Consultant, nor its principal, officer, agent, employee, nor 
Consultant's supplier, Consultant, subconsultant nor anyone employed directly or 
indirectly by any of them. 

 
The terms of this Agreement are contractual and the result of negotiation between the 
parties hereto.  Accordingly, any rule of construction of contracts (including, without 
limitation, California Civil Code Section 1654) that ambiguities are to be construed against 
the drafting party, shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
18. Force Majeure 

 
Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other for any failure of performance 
where such failure of performance is caused by or is the result of causes beyond the 
reasonable control of the other party due to any occurrence commonly known as a "force 
majeure," including, but not limited to: acts of God; fire, flood, or other natural catastrophe; 
acts of any governmental body; labor dispute or shortage; national emergency; 
insurrection; riot; or war. 

 
19. Independent Consultant. 
 

A. Status.  The Parties hereby acknowledge that in rendering the Services provided 
hereunder, Consultant shall be deemed to be an independent Consultant and shall 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 67 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 16 of 18 

not be deemed in any way an agent, partner or joint venturer of the District.  
Consultant acknowledges and agrees that, as an independent Consultant, it is 
solely responsible for the payment of any and all taxes and/or assessments 
imposed on account of payment to Consultant or the performance of Services by 
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
B. Agency Restrictions.  Consultant understands and agrees that Consultant shall not 

represent itself to third parties to be the agent, employee, partner or joint venturer 
of the District.  Furthermore, Consultant shall not make any statements on behalf 
of or otherwise purporting to bind the District in any contract or otherwise related 
agreement.  Consultant further agrees and acknowledges that Consultant does not 
have the authority to and shall not sign any contract on behalf of the District or any 
of its subsidiaries or affiliates.  Consultant shall not obligate the District or any of 
its subsidiaries or affiliates to do any other act that would bind the District or any 
of its subsidiaries or affiliates in any manner. 

 
20. Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties and supersedes any prior understandings, agreements, or representations 
by or between the Parties, written or oral, to the extent they have related in any way 
to the subject matter hereof. 

 
B. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall not confer any rights or 

remedies upon any person or entity other than the Parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 

 
C. Succession. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

Parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 

D. Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for 
convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of 
this Agreement 

 
E. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the domestic laws of the State of California without giving effect 
to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of California 
or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the laws of any 
jurisdiction other than the State of California.  Venue for any suit, action or 
proceeding shall exist exclusively in the courts having jurisdiction over the County 
of San Bernardino. 

 
F. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together will constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

 
G. Waivers. No waiver by any Party of any default, misrepresentation, or breach of 

warranty or covenant hereunder, whether intentional or not, shall be deemed to 
extend to any prior or subsequent default, misrepresentation, or breach of warranty 
or covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising by virtue of any prior 
or subsequent occurrence. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 68 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 17 of 18 

 
H. Amendment. Except as expressly provided otherwise herein, this Agreement may 

not be amended without the express written consent of both Parties. 
 

I. Severability. Any term or provision of this Agreement that is invalid or 
unenforceable in any situation in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or 
enforceability of the offending term or provision in any other situation or in any 
other jurisdiction. 

 
J. Release of Information and Advertising. Consultant shall not, without the prior 

written consent of District, make any news release or other public disclosure 
regarding this Project. 

 
K. Construction. The Parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting 

of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation 
arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the Parties and no 
presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by 
virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement. Any reference 
to any federal, state, local, or foreign statute or law shall be deemed also to refer to 
all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, unless the context requires 
otherwise. The word “including” shall mean including without limitation. 

 
L. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms 

of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, reasonable expert witness fees, costs, and necessary disbursements in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed is Agreement to be effective on the day and 
year first above written.   
 

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

Dated:  By:  

   Chris Mann, Board President 

 
 

CONSULTANT 

Dated:  By:  

Print Name:  

Print Title:  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 69 of 181



Director Memorandum No.19-091  Page 18 of 18 

 
 
 

 
Attachment A - Scope of Work 

 
 
 

Attachment B - Fee Proposal 
 
 
 

Attachment C - Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 70 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-092 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Re-Approval of the Brineline Easement - Canal Parcel License Agreement with 
the City of Riverside 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Canal Parcel 
License Agreement with the City of Riverside. 

 
On August 6, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the Canal Parcel License Agreement with 
the City of Riverside as Director Memorandum No. 19-071.  Following the approval of the License 
Agreement, the City of Riverside then amended the annual lease agreement amount from 
$720.00 to $730.06.  The calculation for the rent is based on the CPI Index All Urban Wage 
Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W), per the Nonexclusive License Agreement dated August 
15, 2011, in Section 4(c)(a)(1). The annual rent will increase yearly by an amount equal to two 
(2%) on each anniversary.   
 
As discussed previously the City of Riverside did incorporate some of the recommended changes 
by the District; such as Section 22 was deleted as its repeated language in Section 21.  The City 
also accepted deletion of the 90-day termination clause which conflicted with the 5-year term of 
the Lease.  They did not accept the change to a 99-year lease, but the 5-year term is repeatedly 
renewable at the District’s option so long as the City receives at least 6 months’ notice before the 
expiration of the existing term. 
 
Attached is the revised Renewal License Agreement between the City of Riverside and Yucaipa 
Valley Water District for the use of Assessor's Parcel Number 0283-041-31 and 0283-041-32.  
 
 
Financial Analysis 
 
This expense is included in the 2019-20 budget.  Funds for this project will be paid from the Sewer 
Division, Brineline Operating Expenses [G/L Account #03-502-57034). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 71 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 2 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 72 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 3 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 73 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 4 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 74 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 5 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 75 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 6 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 76 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 7 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 77 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 8 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 78 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 9 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 79 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 10 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 80 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 11 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 81 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 12 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 82 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 13 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 83 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 14 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 84 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 15 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 85 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 16 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 86 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 17 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 87 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-092  Page 18 of 18 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 88 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-093 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Purchasing 1,000 Acre Feet of Imported Water from the 
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for Groundwater Recharge 
of the Bunker Hill Groundwater Basin for Calendar Year 2020 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the purchase of 1,000 acre-feet from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for a sum not to exceed 
$118,400. 

 
On November 18, 2002, the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District adopted Resolution 
No. 888 which describes the rules, regulations, and rates for the sale and delivery of supplemental 
water.  The adopted water rates consist of a $108/AF energy charge and a $40/AF conveyance 
charge for a total base price of $148/AF.  The following chart illustrates the discounts and 
surcharges that apply to water purchases. 

 

 Criteria Payment Method 
Discount / 
Surcharge 

Water 
Rate 

T
ie

r 
I 

P
la

n
 A

h
e
a
d

 

Water ordered prior to 
December 31st for 
delivery in the 
following calendar 
year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/12th of 
the water ordered due at the 
end of each month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

15% Discount of 
base water rate 

$125.80/AF 

T
ie

r 
II

 

S
e
a

s
o

n
a
l 

S
to

ra
g

e
 

Water ordered for 
groundwater recharge 
prior to December 31st 
for delivery during 
January through May 
of the following year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/5th of 
the water is due at the end of 
each Tier II month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

20% Discount of 
base water rate 

$118.40/AF 

T
ie

r 
II
I 

S
p

o
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 Water ordered at any 
time during the 
calendar year for 
delivery in the same 
calendar year. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. 

25% Surcharge 
of base water 

rate 
$185/AF 

O
u

ts
id

e
 

W
a
te

r 

R
a
te

s
 

Water purchased from 
SBVMWD for use 
outside of the 
boundary of 
SBVMWD. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. Rate based on 
DWR Bulletin 132 Appendix B. 

- - $378.89/AF 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 89 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-093 Page 2 of 3 

 

On August 20, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the purchase of 6,000 acre feet for direct 
delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility [Director Memorandum No. 19-
087].  The Yucaipa Valley Water District will be paying $125.80/acre foot, or $754,800 for the 
purchase of this water. 
 
In order to further diversify our water resources and to protect against outages of the State Water 
Project, the District should consider purchasing imported water for storage in the Bunker Hill 
Groundwater Basin.  Imported water added to the Bunker Hill would be produced as groundwater 
and delivered to the Yucaipa Valley Water District as untreated water.  In the future, this water 
may be provided as drinking water through an interconnection with the City of Redlands. 
 

 
 
The District staff would like to request authorization to proceed with the purchase of 1,000 acre 
feet of imported water for recharge in the Bunker Hill Basin in calendar year 2020.  Water for 
groundwater recharge is purchased at a cost of $118.40/acre foot, for a total cost of $118,400.   
 
The District staff recommends making this purchase contingent on the approval of terms and 
conditions for future delivery of this imported water to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility.  The Board of Directors and staff members at the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District are very supportive of regional planning, so there seems to be very little risk of paying for 
a stranded asset in the Bunker Hill Basin.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 90 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-093 Page 3 of 3 

 

If we are unable to develop an agreement that outlines the terms of how the water will be returned 
to the Yucaipa area by January 15, 2020, the District can take delivery of the imported water at 
the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins for the same cost.  However, if we are able to reach an 
agreement, the District staff suggests planning to purchase an additional 15-20% of our annual 
imported water order each year for delivery and interim storage in the Bunker Hill Groundwater 
Basin.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 91 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-094 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution No. 2019-17 Updating the Calculation for 
Facility Capacity Charges Necessary to Secure Supplemental Water 
Resources for New Development within the Boundary of the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency and the City of Calimesa 

Recommendation: That the Board approve Resolution No. 2019-17.  

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District currently charges $13,478 per dwelling unit for facilitate 
capacity charges for each new residential unit constructed in our service area.  This fee recovers 
costs expended by the District for the construction of the following facilities: 
 

Description of Drinking Water Component 
Existing Facility 

Capacity Charges 

Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility $3,811 

Recycled Water System $823 

Booster Pumping Plants $885 

Pipeline Facilities $4,407 

Water Storage Reservoirs $3,552 

Total $13,478 

 
While the District’s development related fees are typically more expensive than neighboring 
agencies, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has consistently pursued extensive improvements 
and fully integrated solutions to secure long-term, reliable, and resilient water and sewer service 
for our customers.   
 
On July 27, 2015, the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (“SGPWA”) 
adopted Resolution No. 2015-05 adopting facility capacity fees for new infrastructure and 
additional water resources.  The adoption of this resolution was deemed necessary by the 
SGPWA to “…meet future increasing demands for SGPWA supplemental water to the SGPWA 
service area which will require additional water facilities to be constructed to distribute water and 
to acquire additional water rights to meet future increasing demands.”1   
 

 
1 This fee only is applicable to developments in the Calimesa portion of the Yucaipa Valley Water District service area.  
The portion of the Yucaipa Valley Water District in the City of Yucaipa receives imported water servce from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 92 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 2 of 10 

 

On September 19, 2017, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2017-23 Establishing the 
Methodology to Calculate and the Collection of Facility Capacity Charges Related to the Purchase 
of Water Resources for New Development within the Boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency and the City of Calimesa. 
 
This resolution was designed to be updated annually to reflect the reliability of imported water 
supplies from the State Water Project and to develop a pricing methodology that will secure 
permanent supplemental water supplies from alternative sources. 
 
Based on this methodology, the additional cost per residential dwelling unit in the City of Calimesa 
was calculated to be $4,370 for a home that is dual plumbed to receive recycled water for front 
and rear yard irrigation use.  This charge is not applicable to new development in the City of 
Yucaipa. 
 

Methodology Used to Calculate the  
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge for  

Supplemental Water Resources 
 

• One Drinking Water Service Unit (1.0 WSU) applicable only to this Resolution is 
equal to 10 kgal/monthly billing period 

o Estimated Annual Drinking Water Demand = 120 kgal per year  
o Estimated Daily Drinking Water Demand of 330 gpd/EDU 

 

• 0% Interest 
 

• 52.5% State Water Project Reliability Factor - Ten-Year Rolling Average 
o 2019 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 75% (DWR Notice 19-10)* 
o 2018 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 18-05)* 
o 2017 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 85% (DWR Notice 17-05) 
o 2016 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 60% (DWR Notice 16-06) 
o 2015 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 15-03) 
o 2014 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 14-08) 
o 2013 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 13-09) 
o 2012 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 65% (DWR Notice 12-09) 
o 2011 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 80% (DWR Notice 11-06) 
o 2010 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 50% (DWR Notice 10-11) 
o 2009 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 40% (DWR Notice 09-07) 

• $6,231/Acre Foot Permanent Water Right Estimate 
o Most Recent San Gorgonio Pass Permanent Water Right Purchase Estimate 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Calculation: 
 

120 kgal x 
1,000 gal 

x 
0.000003069 AF 

x 
$6,231 

x 
1 

= $4,370/EDU 
1 kgal gallon Acre Foot 0.525 Reliability 

 
*  On June 19, 2019, the Department of Water Resources issued a Notice to State Water Project Contractors 

(Number 19-10) setting the 2019 State Water Project Allocation at 75%.  Said Notice is anticipated to remain in 
effect on September 30, 2019.  However, if there is a change to the State Water Project Allocation before 
September 30, 2018, an updated resolution and sample methodology will be presented to the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District Board of Directors for consideration.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 93 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 3 of 10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT UPDATING THE 
CALCULATION FOR FACILITY CAPACITY CHARGES RELATED TO THE 

PURCHASE OF PERMANENT WATER RESOURCES FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT 
WITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY AND 

THE CITY OF CALIMESA 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is a public agency of the State of 
California organized and existing pursuant to the provisions of the County Water District Law of 
this State (Section 30000, et seq. of the Water Code); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has adopted Facility Capacity Charges for drinking water, sewer, and 
recycled water services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors reviewed Resolution No. 2015-05 adopted by the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (the “Pass Water Agency”) and its Capacity Fee Study and 
documentation (“Study”) supporting the need for supplemental water to provide service to new 
development within the boundary of the Pass Water Agency; and   
 
WHEREAS, the above-referenced Study was considered by the District’s Board of Directors at 
several board workshops, board meetings, and the public hearing; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors is expected to secure supplemental water from the 
Pass Water Agency when a permanent source of supply is secured and available to provide 
service to new development within the service area of the Pass Water Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the supplemental water capacity charge is to purchase and/or finance, 
in whole or in part, permanent water rights dedicated to the District or fund the implementation of 
a similar program that provides the same permanent water supply for new development within 
the boundary of both the District and the Pass Water Agency; and   
 
WHEREAS, the fee structure and methodology established herein is set forth as the supplemental 
water fee adopted by the Pass Water Agency (as may be modified) in its Resolution No. 2015-
05, Section 7 as a reasonable estimate for securing supplemental water rights unless modified 
by the District’s Board of Directors; and   
 
WHEREAS, the facts and evidence presented to the District’s Board of Directors during previous 
board workshops and board meetings, including the Pass Water Agency’s Study, demonstrate 
that the facility capacity charge related to supplemental water to be levied by the District will not 
exceed the estimated reasonable cost for providing the services for which the capacity charges 
are imposed and, therefore, complies with Government Code Section 66013; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District is relying upon the facts and evidence presented in the Pass Water 
Agency’s Study to support the need for the supplemental facility capacity charge expected to be 
assessed by the Pass Water Agency; and 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 94 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 4 of 10 

 

WHEREAS, the supplemental water facility capacity charge established herein is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code, Section 21080(b)(8) because 
the charges are imposed to obtain funds necessary to maintain services within the District; and   
WHEREAS, this resolution shall be implemented to supplement the facility capacity charges 
currently in effect by the Yucaipa Valley Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the charges set forth herein are being adopted following a public hearing and notices 
provided in accordance with the requirements of Government Code, Section 66000, et seq., 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District, as follows: 
 
1. Purpose and Implementation.  The charges set forth herein are for the purpose of 

implementing the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Resolution No. 2015-05 provided as 
Exhibit A and as supported by the Pass Water Agency’s Study. 

 
2. Implementation of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Resolution No. 2015-05.  The 

Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the General Manager 
to include language in development agreements within the boundary of the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency, subject to further review and approval by the Board of Directors, 
adequate to ensure permanent water resources are secured for all new development within 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency boundary: 
 
A. All new development shall be required to be dual-plumbed with recycled water to 

meet the irrigation demands; and drinking water to meet drinking water and fire flow 
demands. 

 
B. A Drinking Water Service Unit (WSU) shall be based on an equivalent volume of 

drinking water used to meet domestic water demands for a typical equivalent single-
family residential dwelling unit (EDU).  The District staff is directed to provide 
information to evaluate the conversion factor for the WSU based on data acquired in 
the future.  For purposes of this resolution only, one WSU is equal to 10 kgal per 
monthly billing period.   

 
C. Drinking water demand shall be determined for each parcel in units of gallons per day 

per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (gpd/EDU) and expressed as a Water Service Unit 
(WSU) to 1/10th.  The WSU will be used the calculate the Supplemental Water Facility 
Capacity Charge for each parcel within the Pass Water Agency service area based 
on drinking water demands. 
 
Typical components used to calculate the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity 
Charge for the purchase of permanent water supplies shall include: (i) the WSU for 
each parcel; (ii) the lesser of either 0% or the actual interest charge incurred by the 
District necessary to finance the construction of facilities or purchase of supplemental 
water rights; (iii) the rolling average of ten prior years of State Water Project reliability 
as determined by the California Department of Water Resources in effect on 
September 30th of each calendar year; and (iv) the estimated or actual cost of 
securing permanent supplemental water supplies by the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency or alternative sources of supply.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 95 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 5 of 10 

 

 
An example of the calculation methodology is provided in Exhibit B. 

 
D. Property owners and/or developers that provide permanent secured water rights 

and/or contribute to the funding of dependable water resources shall receive a credit 
for the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge required by this resolution if the 
secured water resources are permanently dedicated and/or permanently available to 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District prior to executing a development agreement for the 
subject development. 

 
E. Based on the example calculation methodology illustrated in Exhibit B, the 

Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge shall be adjusted after considering: (i) 
information presented by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency as provided in 
Resolution No. 2015-05 and subsequent versions related to securing permanent 
supplemental water supplies; (ii) information presented by the California Department 
of Water Resources for the prior year allocation of water from the State Water Project 
as a demonstration of reliability; (iii) securing overlying water rights in the region; and 
(iv) development and construction of the Salinity and Groundwater Enhancement 
(SAGE) Project or other similar projects that produce a new source of supply for the 
Calimesa service area.   

 
3. Monthly Water Demands in Excess of Paid Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge.  

The Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the implementation 
of a charge for drinking water demands by customers that exceed the quantity of 
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge as determined and assessed to each parcel 
as the WSU for the use of supplemental water rights on an as needed basis. 

 
A. The Water Service Unit (WSU) used to calculate the Supplemental Water Facility 

Capacity Charge shall evaluated each billing period to determine if the quantity of 
drinking water delivered exceeded the WSU purchased for the property.   

 
B. If the quantity of drinking water delivered is equal to or less than the WSU used to 

calculate the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge, then no surcharge shall 
be applied. 

 
C. If the quantity of drinking water delivered is greater than the WSU used to calculate 

the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge, then the surcharge shall be 
applied accordingly. 

 
4. Equivalent Alternatives to Secured Supplemental Water Sources.  The Board of Directors of 

the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the District staff to pursue the planning and 
implementation of indirect potable reuse and direct potable reuse of recycled water as a 
feasible alternative to securing imported water from areas outside of the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District.  Funds collected pursuant to this Resolution may be substituted for 
constructing an indirect potable reuse project and/or a direct potable reuse project at the 
Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility, the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility, or other location within the District’s service area.  Furthermore, the District staff is 
directed to pursue Federal and State funding to bridge the anticipated shortfall in funds if this 
equivalent source of supply becomes a reliable alternative to imported water. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 96 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 6 of 10 

 

5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective on January 1, 2020 and shall remain 
in effect until such time as it is rescinded or superseded.   

 
6. This Resolution supersedes Resolution No. 2018-27 adopted on August 21, 2018. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 3rd day of September 2019. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 97 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 7 of 10 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 98 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 8 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 99 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 9 of 10 

 

 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 100 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-094 Page 10 of 10 

 

Sample Methodology to Calculate the  
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge 

 
Assumptions: 
 

• One Drinking Water Service Unit (1.0 WSU) applicable only to this Resolution is 
equal to 10 kgal/monthly billing period 

o Estimated Annual Drinking Water Demand = 120 kgal per year  

o Estimated Daily Drinking Water Demand of 330 gpd/EDU 

 

• 0% Interest 
 

• 52.5% State Water Project Reliability Factor - Ten-Year Rolling Average 
o 2019 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 75% (DWR Notice 19-10)* 
o 2018 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 18-05)* 
o 2017 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 85% (DWR Notice 17-05) 
o 2016 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 60% (DWR Notice 16-06) 
o 2015 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 15-03) 
o 2014 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 14-08) 
o 2013 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 13-09) 
o 2012 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 65% (DWR Notice 12-09) 
o 2011 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 80% (DWR Notice 11-06) 
o 2010 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 50% (DWR Notice 10-11) 
o 2009 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 40% (DWR Notice 09-07) 

• $6,231/Acre Foot Permanent Water Right Estimate 
o Most Recent San Gorgonio Pass Permanent Water Right Purchase Estimate 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Calculation: 
 

120 kgal x 
1,000 gal 

x 
0.000003069 AF 

x 
$6,231 

x 
1 

= $4,370/EDU 
1 kgal gallon Acre Foot 0.525 Reliability 

 
 
*  On June 19, 2019, the Department of Water Resources issued a Notice to State Water Project Contractors 

(Number 19-10) setting the 2019 State Water Project Allocation at 75%.  Said Notice is anticipated to remain in 
effect on September 30, 2019.  However, if there is a change to the State Water Project Allocation before 
September 30, 2018, an updated resolution and sample methodology will be presented to the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District Board of Directors for consideration. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 101 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-095 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Purchasing 250 Acre Feet of Imported Water from the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for Direct Delivery to the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility for Calendar Year 2020 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the purchase of 250 acre-feet of imported 
water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  for a sum not to 
exceed $99,750. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District 
receives imported water from both 
the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District and the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility.   
 
Since the District is required to 
differentiate between the imported 
water received from each State 
Water Contractor, a unique 
calculation methodology was 
developed to track the imported 
water provided by the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District for use in San Bernardino 
County, and imported water 
provided by the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency for use in 
Riverside County.  The result of this 
calculation is used to determine 
how much water is purchased from 
each State Water Contractor. 
 
On April 15, 2019, the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
adopted Resolution No. 2019-02 
increasing the rate of imported 
water from $309 per acre foot 
approved on February 17, 2009, to 
$399 per acre foot.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 102 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-095 Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 
Anticipated Water Delivery for 2020 - San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 
Last year the District ordered 1,150 acre feet of imported water from the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency, but will likely only use 225 acre feet.  This year the District staff recommends the 
purchase of 250 acre-feet for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility for Calendar Year 2020.  At the current rate of $399 per acre foot, the total cost of the 
imported water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency will be $99,750 [GL Account #02-
10316]. 
 
 
Changing Conditions and Uncertainty 
 
The proposed water order identified above is a projection representing the quantity of imported 
water expected based on current demands and a variety of other issues.  If additional imported 
water is needed or made available, a separate recommendation will be presented for your 
consideration. 
 
Additionally, the water order placed this year is not an indication of the amount of water needed 
next year, or in future years. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 103 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-095 Page 3 of 5 

 

 
Excerpt from the SGPWA Meeting Minutes - April 15, 2019 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On November 18, 2002, the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District adopted Resolution 
No. 888 which describes the rules, regulations, and rates for the sale and delivery of supplemental 
water.  The adopted water rates consist of a $108/AF energy charge and a $40/AF conveyance 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 104 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-095 Page 4 of 5 

 

charge for a total base price of $148/AF.  The following chart illustrates the discounts and 
surcharges that apply to water purchases. 

 

 Criteria Payment Method 
Discount / 
Surcharge 

Water 
Rate 

T
ie

r 
I 

P
la

n
 A

h
e
a
d

 

Water ordered prior to 
December 31st for 
delivery in the 
following calendar 
year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/12th of 
the water ordered due at the 
end of each month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

15% Discount of 
base water rate 

$125.80/AF 

T
ie

r 
II

 

S
e
a

s
o

n
a
l 

S
to

ra
g

e
 

Water ordered for 
groundwater recharge 
prior to December 31st 
for delivery during 
January through May 
of the following year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/5th of 
the water is due at the end of 
each Tier II month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

20% Discount of 
base water rate 

$118.40/AF 

T
ie

r 
II
I 

S
p

o
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 Water ordered at any 
time during the 
calendar year for 
delivery in the same 
calendar year. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. 

25% Surcharge 
of base water 

rate 
$185/AF 

O
u

ts
id

e
 

W
a
te

r 

R
a
te

s
 

Water purchased from 
SBVMWD for use 
outside of the 
boundary of 
SBVMWD. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. Rate based on 
DWR Bulletin 132 Appendix B. 

- - $378.89/AF 

 

While SBVMWD offers very favorable imported water rates, there is no guarantee to receive the 
imported water that is ordered and paid for at the beginning of the calendar year.  It is possible 
that operational issues with the State Water Project and/or lack of rainfall in northern California 
can result in less water being delivered than paid for by the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 105 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-095 Page 5 of 5 

 

 
 
Anticipated Water Delivery for 2020 - San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 
In 2019, the District ordered 7,500 acre feet of imported water from the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District.  This year the District staff recommends the purchase of 6,000 acre-feet 
for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility for Calendar Year 2020.  
At the current rate of $125.80 per acre foot, the total cost of the imported water from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District will be $754,800 [GL Account #02-10315].  Payment 
is due in full by January 31, 2020. 
 
The District staff is reviewing the possibility of purchasing additional imported water for recharge 
of the Bunker Hill groundwater basin.  The discussion regarding this purchase will be considered 
separately in the near future. 
 
 
Changing Conditions and Uncertainty 
 
The proposed water order identified above is a projection representing the maximum quantity 
expected based on current demands and a variety of other issues.  If additional imported water is 
needed or made available, a separate recommendation will be presented for your consideration. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 106 of 181



 

 

 

Director Memorandum 19-096 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 

Subject: Purchase of Replacement Lamps for the Ultraviolet Disinfection Process at 
the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the purchase of 336 ultraviolet lamps for a 
sum not to exceed $133,954.80 from Trojan Technologies. 

 
The Wochholz Regional Water Recycling 
Facility utilizes a Trojan 3000+ ultraviolet 
system for disinfecting the final recycled 
water produced at the facility.  The 
California Department of Public Health 
regulates ultraviolet disinfection systems in 
the State of California and requires the 
individual ultraviolet lamps be replaced prior 
to exceeding 9,000 hours of operation, or 
approximately one year of continuous 
usage. 
 
The Wochholz Regional Water Recycling 
Facility was designed with two ultraviolet 
disinfection channels with each channel 
containing 168 lamps, or 336 lamps total for 
the entire facility. 
 
The original procurement documents for the ultraviolet disinfection system provided for 
guaranteed replacement pricing on the ultraviolet lamps.  The current guaranteed replacement 
pricing is scheduled to expire on September 15, 2019.  Lamps purchased before this date cost 

$370.00 per lamp, for a total cost (including tax) of 
$66,977.40 per channel, or $133,954.80 for both 
channels. 
 
The District staff has been staggering the usage of 
the ultraviolet lamps in each channel to ensure 
disinfection compliance and reduce the impacts of a 
negative cash flow throughout each fiscal year.  
Based on current conditions, the District staff expects 
to change one channel of ultraviolet lamps during the 
last half of this fiscal year and the other channel of 
ultraviolet lamps during the first half of next fiscal year 
(2020).   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 107 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-096 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 108 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-097 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manger 

Subject: Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to Recharge Testing to Evaluate the 
Long-Term Infiltration Rates in the Western Portion of the Beaumont Basin 
- Calimesa Lake and Spreading Basin 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a contract for 
Amendment No. 2 with Geoscience for a sum not to exceed $456,064. 

 
Like most water agencies in the arid southwest, the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District is confronted with 
increased drinking water demands due to the increased 
population and limited local water supplies.  The Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is somewhat unique given the strict 
regulatory requirements that necessitate desalination of 
recycled water supplies to protect local groundwater 
basins pursuant to the 2004 Regional Water Quality 
Control Basin Plan for the Santa Ana Region.   
 
To address a wide range of regional issues, the District 
has developed the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Supply Renewal Project to accomplish the following 
objectives: 
 
REGIONAL BENEFITS: 

 Provide the Yucaipa Valley with a renewable 
water resource that will be a reliable water supply 
in the upper Santa Ana Watershed. 

 Protect and enhance the regional groundwater quality by exporting concentrated salt brine 
that would normally accumulate in the groundwater supplies impacting future uses. 

 Reduce the critical overdraft of the Yucaipa, Beaumont, and San Timoteo basins by 
augmenting the historic freshwater production from the local groundwater supplies.  

 Encourage economic and environmental growth of the region by balancing water 
demands. 

 
WATERSHED BENEFITS: 

 Equip the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility with advanced treatment including 
reverse osmosis to achieve an advanced, pure, and renewable water resource. 

 Protect water quality in the Santa Ana Watershed by maintaining high quality water in the 
upper watershed as the water of the upper basins eventually flows to the downstream 
basins. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 109 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 2 of 23 

 

 Rely upon the Inland Empire Brineline, originally constructed by the Santa Ana Watershed 
Authority, and utilize the 15-mile brineline extension constructed by the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District. 

 Consider achieving a zero-discharge of treated wastewater to provide the ultimate 
protection of downstream water resources consistent with the goals of the Clean Water 
Act. 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA BENEFITS: 

 Reduce the need for water to be imported from northern California that would normally be 
required to meet future water demands allowing more water to remain in the Sacramento 
Delta. 

 Implement conservation programs, including efficiency water use and water recycling, 
consistent in protecting the water resources of the State of California. 

 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply Renewal Project 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply Renewal Project is an innovative salinity control 
project that will effectively eliminate the buildup of minerals in the Yucaipa Valley that would 
typically degrade drinking water supplies.  The overall project involves expanded reverse osmosis 
infrastructure at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility (Salinity Concentrate 
Reduction and Minimization “SCRAM” System); an expanded reverse osmosis and treatment 
infrastructure at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility (Salinity and Groundwater 
Enhancement “SAGE” Project); and a recharge facility at the Calimesa Lake and Spreading 
Basins.  Coupled with the District’s aggressive recycled water program, these projects will 
minimize the amount of water imported from the fragile ecosystem in northern California and allow 
for the maximum use of high-purity recycled water.   
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 110 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 3 of 23 

 

Long-Term Infiltration Study for the proposed Calimesa Lake and Spreading Basins 
 
The District staff has been working with Geoscience for the development and operating plan for 
the proposed Calimesa Lake and Spreading Basins.  Based on a thorough evaluation and study 
of the groundwater basin, the District will be able to effectively operate and manage the westerly 
portion of the Beaumont Basin consistent with the adjudication overseen by the Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster (http://www.beaumontbasinwatermaster.org/) 
 

 
 
The District staff recognizes that a limited recharge study would not be sufficient in this case to 
answer all of the pending questions and issues.  As shown in the illustration below, by simply 
measuring the percolation rate of the basin, there would be several other factors that remain 
unresolved. 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 111 of 181

http://documents.yvwd.dst.ca.us/bbwm/documents/formation/judgment.pdf
http://www.beaumontbasinwatermaster.org/


Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 4 of 23 

 

Therefore, the original scope of services was developed to utilize a methodology with monitoring 
wells that will be able to determine: the water mounding effect; the lateral movement of subsurface 
water; the infiltration rate in the vadose zone; all used to calculate the specific yield and total 
potential of storage when the spreading basins are constructed. 
 

 
 
The District has received written authorization from the property owner to conduct the work at this 
location. 
 
 
Geoscience Contract - Amendment No. 1 
 
Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Board of Directors on June 4, 2019 [Director 
Memorandum No. 19-057] and consisted of the following tasks. 
 

Task 3 - Installation of Vadose Zone and Groundwater Monitoring Points 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 112 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 5 of 23 

 

Overall, the construction of all of the monitoring equipment took longer than anticipated.  
Additional drill rig time and installation time was needed because the drilling logs 
suggested that there may be an offset in the subsurface soils along a fault and potentially 
a perched groundwater condition.  Therefore, Geoscience deepened Location #2 to make 
sure that the soil materials encountered in the upper 95 feet in Location #1 was penetrated.   
 
Geoscience also installed a piezometer to make sure groundwater levels could be 
measured to assess potential perched conditions.  
 
Based on the lithology encountered in the unsaturated zone Geoscience thought it was 
prudent to have a subsidence benchmark placed and survey to detect whether hydro-
compaction would be induced when the vadose zone was saturated during the test. 
 
Geoscience also equipped two additional wells (Location 2 piezometer and the residential 
well) from their initial quote. 
 
The additional costs for Task 3 are detailed in the attached table and are composed of 
staff time, additional subcontractor costs, and reimbursables.   
 
The total additional cost for Task 3 is $33,244.   
 
Task 4 - Pilot Testing - Artificial Recharge Basin Construction and Monitoring 
 
This task includes the addition of climate equipment including an evaporation pan and rain 
gauge which was not included in the original estimate.  The local data was determined to 
be insufficient for the precise nature of this study. 
 
The soil types were found to be much more variable across the area than initially 
determined from the two instrumentation borings.  The District agreed to evacuate the 
basin by pumping the water into the adjacent fields so as to dry out the basin as quick as 
possible.  After the basin dried, Geoscience conducted additional investigations using 12 
hand drilled borings to explore the distribution of soil types beneath the bottom of the basin 
across the basin.  Geoscience also completed seven shallow percolation tests to assess 
the percolation rates of the various shallow subsurface soil types to develop an initial 
estimate of potential infiltration.  Based on these investigations and shallow test pits 
conducted at the site with the District staff, Geoscience recommended the depth of 
removal of soils for the pilot test.  
 
The additional new subtasks completed as a part of Task 4 to date are detailed in the 
attached table.  The new subtasks are described in bold font.  Where additional costs were 
incurred on old tasks, the explanation is in bold within the description.   
 
The total additional cost for Task 4 is $68,220. 

 
 
Geoscience Contract - Amendment No. 2 
 
Based on the results of this study to date, the infiltration testing showed the movement of 
groundwater in a westerly direction prior to reaching the groundwater basin. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 113 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 6 of 23 

 

 
 
The following illustration shows how it is possible for the recharge water to move laterally instead 
of vertically to the groundwater basin. 
 

 
 
As a result of the initial testing, the District staff requested a proposal from Geoscience to conduct 
additional geological testing in the easterly portion of the groundwater basin.  The attached 
scientific study has been developed to: (1) conduct additional exploratory drilling and testing; (2) 
perform additional infiltration testing; (3) prepare a groundwater model that will be used to support 
the recharge of recycled water at this location. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 114 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 7 of 23 

 

The overall goals of this next phase of the project include: 
 

• Confirm the westerly movement of water from the existing pilot basin, above the 
perching layer; 
 

• Explore subsurface geology in the eastern portion of the site; 
 

• Depending on the subsurface geologic conditions, conduct infiltration testing using 
methods that will provide data for potential surface spreading or injection; 
 

• Conduct groundwater modeling to provide a preliminary evaluation of potential travel 
times for the recycled water in the subsurface; and 
 

• Conduct seismic reflection surveys to explore the subsurface on and offsite within a 
six-month travel time of recharge locations 

 
As discussed at the board workshop on August 27, 2019, this portion of the Beaumont Basin has 
not been studied as much as other areas of the basin. 
 

 
 
While the additional scientific studies are expensive, the information and knowledge obtained will 
allow the District to make better informed decisions.  Additionally, the scope of services allows 
the District to stop the investigation without completing the entire scope of work. 
 
 
Financial Analysis 
 
This project is not included in the current operating budget.  Funds for this project will be split 
equally between the Water Division - Depreciation Reserves (02-10310) and Sewer Division - 
Depreciation Reserves (03-10310). 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 115 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 8 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 116 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 9 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 117 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 10 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 118 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 11 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 119 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 12 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 120 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 13 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 121 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 14 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 122 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 15 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 123 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 16 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 124 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 17 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 125 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 18 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 126 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 19 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 127 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 20 of 23 

 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 128 of 181



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 129 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 22 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 130 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-097  Page 23 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 131 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-098 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manger 

Subject: Consideration of Replacing the Influent Basket Strainers at the Yucaipa 
Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to purchase three Forsta 
Filters and contract with Pascal & Ludwig for the installation for a sum 
not to exceed $338,100. 

 
Throughout the years of operation at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility, the influent water can 
experience increases in influent turbidity issues.  The original 
brass strainer baskets are now twelve years old.  The current 
system of isolating the baskets to clean them is extremely labor 
intensive.  Installing new strainers would decrease staff labor 
hours and increase efficiency. 
 
District staff acquired bids for basket replacement from Forsta 
Filters and Amiad Water Systems.  District staff is asking for 
your consideration to purchase three Forsta Filters and 
contract with Pascal & Ludwig Constructors for their installation 
for a sum not to exceed $338,100.  This project will be funded 
by Water Fund, Depreciation Reserves [G/L Account #02-000-
10310]. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 132 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 2 of 11 

 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 133 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 3 of 11 

Pascal & Ludwig Constructors installation quote #2019-052. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 134 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 4 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 135 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 5 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 136 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 6 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 137 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 7 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 138 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 8 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 139 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 9 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 140 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-098  Page 10 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 141 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-099 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Participation in an Energy Demand Response Program with Enersponse 

Recommendation: That the Board Authorizes the General Manager to Execute Participation 
Agreement in an Energy Demand Response Program with Enersponse. 

 
District staff has been working with Enersponse as a continuation of a prior contract the District 
had with Enernoc.  Enersponse is a voluntary participation program for the reduction of energy 
usage in the event of an energy shortage.  Enersponse is contracted with Southern California 
Edison to facilitate this program. 
 
Under the program the District will voluntarily shut assets (pumps, wells and/or booster stations) 
off during an energy event, and in return will be monetarily compensated.  The energy events will 
only happen between Monday thru Friday, between the hours of 1 p.m. to 9 p.m. and for no longer 
than 4 hours in duration.  The District will be notified 24 hours in advance to an energy event and 
the District can determine if any assets can be turned off for the energy event.  
 
The monetary compensation is detailed in the Revenue Summary attached. The estimation used 
for the Revenue Summary is based on the history of the District prior involvement in the program 
with Enernoc, at 75 percent of the average to give the District a conservative number to consider.  
Also available for District use is a One-Time Controls Rebate in the amount of $119,200.  This 
amount can be used for cost associated with automating the Districts SCADA system to 
communicate and shut down assets.  These automation cost can include SCADA upgrades, 
communication upgrades, software and programming, and other SCADA related costs.  
 
This program is voluntary and has no cost associated with it.  If the District cannot participate in 
an energy event and does not shut any assets off, there are no negative affects to the District. If 
there are no energy events in that month the District will receive the payment as detailed for that 
month on the Revenue Summary.  If there is an energy event and the District exceeds the 596 
kW for the event in savings the compensation will be higher than what is listed.  If the energy 
savings is below the 596 kW for the event the compensation will be lower than the listed amount.  
The District can terminate the contract with a 30-day written notice, with no cause and no 
ramifications regarding termination.  
 
The contract is attached for review.  Schedule 1 references the assets that are included in the 
program and can be voluntarily shut down during an energy event.  
 
 
Financial Consideration 
 
There is no financial consideration regarding cost, as the program does not require any cost to 
participate. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 142 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-099  Page 2 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 143 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-099  Page 3 of 4 

    

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 144 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-099  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 145 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-100 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Acceptance of Overlying Water Rights in the Beaumont Basin for Tract No. 
32702-4 (145 lots) Pursuant to Beaumont Basin Watermaster Resolution 
No. 2017-02 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the purchase of 1,000 acre-feet from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District for a sum not to exceed 
$118,400. 

 
On August 30, 2017, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster adopted Resolution No. 2017-02 
Approving the Transfer of Overlying Water Rights to Specific Parcels - Oak Valley Partners.  This 
resolution approved the transfer of all overlying water rights from Oak Valley Partners to parcels 
within the service area of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 
The attached correspondence dated July 26, 2019 will transfer 53.60 acre-feet of the Oak Valley 
overlying water rights to Tract No. 32702-4 (145 lots).  This transfer of overlying water rights is 
anticipated to be sufficient for the residential, dual-plumbed dwelling units.   
 
The transfer of overlying water rights to appropriative water rights allows the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District to utilize this groundwater resource within our service area conditioned upon the 
guarantee of sufficient water supplies for the proposed development and the provision of water 
service. 
 
 

Summary of Assigned Overlying-Appropriative Rights 
Watermaster 

Notification Date 

Earmarked 
Amount  

(acre feet) 

Assignment No. 1 to Yucaipa Valley Water District 3/28/2018 90.94 

Assignment No. 2 to Yucaipa Valley Water District 8/1/2018 59.89 

Assignment No. 3 to Yucaipa Valley Water District 10/3/2018 29.57 

Assignment No. 4 to Yucaipa Valley Water District 2/6/2019 2.65 

Assignment No. 5 to Yucaipa Valley Water District - - 53.60 

 Total 236.65 
 
Pursuant to Beaumont Basin Watermaster Resolution No. 2019-02, the District staff will be filing 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster Form 5 to adjust the overlying water rights available to the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 146 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-100 Page 2 of 2 

 

 Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 147 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-101 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Dustin Hochreiter, and Chelsie Fogus Engineering Department 

Subject: Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement No. 2019-12 with 
Richmond American Homes for Tract No. 32702-4 within the Summerwind 
Trails Development - Calimesa 

Recommendation: That the Board Authorizes the President to execute Agreement No. 
2019-12. 

 
Development Agreement No. 2019-12 includes provisions for 
drinking water, recycled water, and sewer service to Tract No. 
32702-4 located at the southwest corner Engleman Drive and 
Palmer Avenue, in the City of Calimesa.   
 
The development agreement is attached for your review and 
consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 148 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 2 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 149 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 3 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 150 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 4 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 151 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 5 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 152 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 6 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 153 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 7 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 154 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 8 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 155 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 9 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 156 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 10 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 157 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 11 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 158 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 12 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 159 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 13 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 160 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 14 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 161 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 15 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 162 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 16 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 163 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-101  Page 17 of 17 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 164 of 181



 

Director Memorandum 19-102 

Date: September 3, 2019 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Approval of Amendments to Development Agreements for Lennar Homes 
(Agreement No. 18-10), DR Horton (Agreement No. 18-11), and Meritage 
Homes (Agreement No. 18-17) in the Summerwind Trails Development 

Recommendation: That the Board approve Amendment No. 1 to Development Agreement 
Nos. 18-10, 18-11, and 18-17.  

 
On August 15, 2007, the Yucaipa Valley Water District approved Development Agreement No. 
06-2007 with SunCal Communities for the development of the Summerwind Ranch Project.  The 
development agreement required SunCal Communities to partially fund the Third Street 
Crosstown pipeline in order to receive drinking water service from the District.   
 
On July 20, 2008, SunCal Communities deposited $1,157,500 with the District for the construction 
of the pipeline project which was eventually completed.  Due to the economic downturn and 
subsequent bankruptcy proceedings, the development agreement was eventually terminated.   
 
Over ten years later, the District approved the following development agreements with builders 
within the Summerwind master planned community that utilize the drinking water pipeline pre-
paid by SunCal Communities. 
 

Agreement 
Number 

Builder Board Meeting Date Board Memorandum 

18-10 Lennar Homes July 17, 2018 DM 18-105 

18-11 DR Horton September 4, 2018 DM 18-125 

18-17 Meritage Homes January 15, 2019 DM 19-009 

 
Upon review of the development files, the three development agreements listed above should 
each receive credit against the District’s Facility Capacity Charge - Drinking Water Pipelines 
previously paid by SunCal Communities.  This specific facility capacity charge component 
associated with drinking water conveyance pipeline facilities should be reimbursed and not 
collected until the total prepaid amount of $1,157,500 is fully allocated to any development within 
the Summerwind Project.   
 
The draft development agreement amendments will be worded to indicate that this credit will be 
applied on a “first-come, first-served” basis until the prepayment is fully allocated. 
 
The District staff recommends processing amendments to each development agreement to reflect 
this correction. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 165 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-102 Page 2 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 166 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-102 Page 3 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 167 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-102 Page 4 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 168 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-102 Page 5 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 169 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-102 Page 6 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 170 of 181



Director Memorandum No. 19-102 Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 171 of 181



 

 

Board Reports 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 172 of 181



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 173 of 181



August 2019 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

72 full time employees 
 

FY 2019-20 Operating Budget: Water Division - $14,455,500 
 Sewer Division - $12,217,712 
 Recycled Water Division - $1,301,447 
 

Number of Services: 13,794 drinking water connections serving 19,243 units 
14,104 sewer connections serving 22,774 units 
111 recycled water connections serving 460 units 

 

Water System: 223 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,033 fire hydrants 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
2.958 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
213 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,504 sewer manholes 
5 sewer lift stations 
1.46 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.681 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 174 of 181



August 2019 
 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.429 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $1.919 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.099 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.429 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.425 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $14.00 per month 
1” Water Meter $23.38 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $46.62 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $42.43 per month 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 175 of 181



August 2019 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2019-20 $0.1425 per $100 $0.1775 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2019-20 $58,372,000 $9,551,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.270 per 1,000 gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.660 per 1,000 gallons.  A proposed 
rate change to $0.857 per 1,000 gallons is pending future consideration by YVWD. 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 176 of 181



August 2019 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli are the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of typically underground pipes that receive and convey 
sanitary wastewater or storm water. 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 177 of 181



August 2019 
 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals,  hormones,  and  other  organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 178 of 181



August 2019 
 

steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) -  Regional regulatory agency  that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 179 of 181

https://www.digalert.org/


August 2019 
 

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 180 of 181



August 2019 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 3, 2019 - Page 181 of 181


	Staff Report - 190823 PFOA and PFOS Guidelines Released.pdf
	State Water Board Updates Guidelines for Testing and Reporting PFOA and PFOS As It Assesses Scope of Problem




